17th
Annual Report
2014-2015

[ 4

-

SOUTHERN ONLINE BIO TECHNOLOGIES LTD

Smart Solutions and Eco Friendly



-
& sar

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
Ms. T Rohini Reddy

Mr. N Satish Kumar

Mr. K Radha Krishna

Mr. B Sreedhara Reddy
Mr. BHR Balaji

Mr. Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi
Mr. Bachala Ashok

Mr. G Viswanath

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Non Executive Chairperson &

Independent Director (DIN; 00638514)

Managing Director {(DIN: 00552358B)

Whole Time Director & CFO (DIN: 01585840)
Director-Administration (DIN: 01302512)

Executive Director (DIN: 00552538}

Non Executive & Independent Director (DIN: 00388913)
Non Executive & Independent Director (DIN; 06856936)
Nominee Director (Bank of India) (DIN: 07192232}

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER:

Ms. G Anupama
REGISTERED OFFICE:

# 8-3-833/173, Kamalapuri Colony,

Phase -ll, Hyderabad -500 073

Tel: (040) 4922 1999, Fax (040) 4922 1998

Wabsite: www.sol.net.in
Email; Info@sol.net.in

BANKERS

Bank of India

Banjara Hills Branch
MCH No 8-2-403/4,
Road No.4, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad - 500 034

State Bank of Hyderabad
Overseas Branch

6-3-652, "KAUTILYA"
Somaijiguda,

Hyderabad - 500 082

STATUTORY AUDITORS:
M/s. P. Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
&-3-655/2/3, Somajiguda
Hyderabad — 500 082

WORKS

Survey Nos. 6 & 7,

Samsthan Narayanpur {V & M)
Nalgonda Dist.

Telangana

UCO Bank

Krishnama House,

No. 8-2-418 {Ground Floor),
Road No. 7, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad - 500 034

Punjab Natlonal Bank
Deccan Chambers,
Opp Allwyn, Erragadda,
Sanath Nagar,
Hyderabad - 500 018

Plot Mo. 45/A, APSEZ,
Atchutapuram, Rambilli Mandal,
Visakhapatnam - 531 011
Andhra Pradesh

a
@




-
& sar

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

M/s. Aarthi Consultants Pwt. Lid.
1-2-285, Domalguda, Hyderabad-29.
Tel: (040) 27642217 / 27638111

Fax: (040) 27632184

Email: info@aarthiconsultants.com

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Ms.T Rohini Reddy - Chairperson
Mr. Bachala Ashok - Member
Mr. Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi - Member

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Ms.T Rehini Reddy - Chairperson
Mr. Bachala Ashok - Member
Mr. Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi - Member

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Ms.T Rohini Reddy - Chairperson
Mr. N Satish Kumar - Member
Mr. K Radha Krishna - Member

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS COMMITTEE:

Ms.T Rohini Reddy - Chairperson
Mr. Bachala Ashok - Member

Mr. Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi - Member
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

Ms.T Rohini Reddy - Chairperson
Mr. N Satish Kumar - Member

Mr. K Radha Krishna - Member
LISTED AT

BSE Limited.

DEMAT ISIN NUMBER IN NSDL& CDSL.:
INE 371B01015

WEBSITE
www.sol.net.in

INVESTOR E-MAIL ID

investors@sol.net.in

CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
L72900TG1998PLC0O30463




-
& sar

NOTICE TO MEMBERS

Notice is hereby given that the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of Southern Online Bio
Technologies Limited will be held on Wednesday, the 30" day of September, 2015 at 10.30 a.m.
at Mrugavani Resorts, # 177/1, Aziz Nagar, Mcinabad, Hyderabad - 500 075, to transact the
following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1} To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Profit and Loss Account for the year ended a1"
March, 2015 and Balance Sheet as at that date together with Director’s Report and Auditor's
Report thereon.

2} To appoint a Director in place of Mr N Satish Kumar (DIN 00552358} who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3} To appoint a Director in place of Mr K Radha Krshna {DIN 01585940} who refires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4} To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuantto the provisions of sections 139(9) and 142(1) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made there under, the appointmeant
of M/s. P Murali & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors (Firm Regn No: 0072578) is
hereby ratified to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till conclusion of
nextAnnual General Meeting, with remuneration as may he decided by the Beard of Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. G Viswanath (DIN: 07192232), who was appointed as Nominee Director
{Bank of India) of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 27.05.2015, in terms of
section 161(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company and
whose term of office expires at this Annual General Mesting and in respact of whom the Company
has received a nofice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for the office of
Director, ba and is hereby appointed as an Non-exacutive Nominee Director of the Company not
liable: to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting.”

6) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as
Special Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory
madification(s) or re-enactment thereof), read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and
pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby
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accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. BHR Balaji (DIN. $0552538) as Executive Director of the
Company, for a period of three years commencing from 05" January 2015 on the remuneration,
terms and conditions as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and as
set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr.BHR Balaji, Executive Director,
including the monetary value thereof, to the extent recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time te time as may be considered appropriate, subject to the
ovarall limits specified by this resolution in terms of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013."

“RESCLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company
be and is hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things, which may be usual,
expedient or proper to give effect to the above resolution.”

7) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as
Special Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provigions of Sections 198, 197, 203 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under {including any statutory
modification(s} or re-enactment thereof), read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and
pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. K Radha Krishna (DIN:01585940) as Whole Time Director &
CFO of the Company, for a period of three years commencing from 05" January 2015 on the
remuneration, terms and conditions as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Direstors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr K Radha Krishna, Whole Time Director & CFO,
including the monetary value thereof, to the extent recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be considered appropriate, subject to the overall
limits specified by this resolution in terms of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company be
and is hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things, which may be usual,
expedient or proper to give effect to the above.”

8) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the folowing Resolution as
Special Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under {including any statutory
meodification(s} or re-enactment thersof), read with Schedule v of the Companies Act, 2013 and
pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. B Sreadhara Reddy (DIN: 11302512) as Director Administration
of the Company, for a period of three years commencing from 05 January 2015 on the
remuneration, terms and conditions as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr.B Sreedhara Reddy, Director Administration,
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including the monetary value thersof, 10 the extent recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be considered appropriate, subject to the overall
limits specified by this resolution in terms of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

“RESOLYED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company
be and is hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things, which may be usual,
expedient or proper fo give effect to the above resolution.”

9) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 148 and its provisions of the Companies Act 2013, 'Lavanya

& Associates', Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101257} of Hyderabad from whom the
letters of intent and independence have been received, are hereby appointed as the Cost Auditors
of the company for the year 2015-16 at a remuneration of Rs. 20,000/- (Rupees Twenty thousand
only)."

10) To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as an
Speclal Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) and the new draft Articles as contained in the Articles of Association submitted be
and are hereby approved and adopted in substitution, and to the entire exclusion of the regulations
contained in the existing Articles of Association of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall be deemed
fo include any Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers
conferred by this resolution) and the Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby
severally authorised to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect
fo this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

. Sd/-
Place : Hyderabad G Anupama
Date . 07.08.2015 Company Secretary

e
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Notes:

1) An Explanatery Statement pursuant to Seclion 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to
Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

2) Amember entitled fo atlend and vote is entifled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote
instead of himself.

A Proxy need not be & member of the Company. Instrument of proxies in order to be effective
must be received by the Company hot less than 48 hours hefora the time for holding the meeting.

3) The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 24" September
2015 to 30" September 2015 (both days inclusive).

4) Non-Resident Indian Shareholders are requested to inform the Registrars, M/s. Aarthi Consultants
Pvt. Lid, immediately:

a) The change in the Residential status on retum tc India for permanent settlement.

b} The particulars of the Bank Account maintained in India with complete name, branch, acsount
type, account number and address of the Bank, if not furnished earlier.

5) Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send a duly
certified copy of the Board resolution authorizing their represantatives to atiend.

6) Pursuantto the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, additional information on Directors seeking
appointment/ reappointment at the Annual General Meeting:

At the ensuing Annual General meating Mr N Satish Kumar and Mr K Radha Krishna retire by
rotation and being eligible offered themselves for re-appointment.

Mr M Satish Kumar born in 1988 is a graduate in English Literature and a Post Gradaute Diploma
holder in Computer Applications. He is one of the Promoter and also Managing Director of the
Company. He is having 25 years of rich experience in the areas of Environment, Software
consultancy and Marketing. He is the Managing Director of the Company and has received various
Nationaland International awards in his personal capacity and on behalf ofthe Company. He doesnot
hold any Commiitee membership in any company except in the Company he is member of
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Risk Management Committee. He is on Board of the
Company since its inception i.e., from Movember 1998. He is also director in Southern Biofe Bicfuels
Pvt Ltd a wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company and Southern online Services Limited. He halds
60,27 652 equity shares ofthe Company.

Mr K Radha Krishna born in 1968, is a graduate in Engineering. He is one of the promoter Director
heading the Finance department of the Campany since its inception. He has total experience of 24
years. The Company has received various National and International awards under his leadership.
He is also director in Southern Biofe Biofuels Private Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and Southern Online Services Limited. He does not hold any committee membership in
any Company except in the Campany he is member of Stakeholders Relationship Coemmittee and
Risk Management Committee. He is on Board of the Company since November 1998. Mr K Radha
Krishna holds 25 34,657 equity shares ofthe Company:.

7) The Ministry of Comorate Affairs (*"Ministry”), Government of India, has taken a “Green Initiative in
Corporate Governance” by allowing paperess compliances by companies through electronic
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mode. As per the Circular No.17/2011, dated 21.04.2011 and Circular No.18/2011, dated
29042011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, companies can now send various
notices/documents (including notice calling Annual General Meeting, Audited Financial Statements,
Directors Report, Auditors Report etc.) to their shareholders through electronic mode, to the
registerad email addresses of the shareheclders.

8

——

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI} has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with
whom they maintain their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should
submit their PAN to the Company / Registrar.

9) In terms of Circular Ne¢.17/2011, dated 21.04.2011 and Circular No.18/2011, dated 29.04.2011
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, under Green initiative in the Comorate Gavernance all
the members are requested to intimate their e-mail address to the Company’s Registrar and
Transfer Agents whose e-mail idis info@aarthiconsultants.com mentioning the Company’s name
i.e., Southem Online Bio Technologies Limited (SBTL), so as to enable the company to send the
Annual Report and Accounts, Notices and other documents through Electronic Mode to their
e-mail address.

Notices/documents including the Annual Repott are now being sent by electronic mode to the
sharehclders whose e-mail address has been registered with the Company. Members who would
like to receive such nctices/documents in electronic mede in lieu of physical copy and who have
not registered their e-mail addresses so far or who would like to update their e-mail addresses
already registered, are requested to register/update their e-mail addresses:

- In respect of electronic shareholding - through their respective Depository Participants.

- in respect of physical shareholding - by sending a request to the Company's Share
Transfer Agent at info@aarthiconsultants.com, mentioning therein the Company’s name i.e.,
Southern Online Bio Technelogies Limited (SBTL), their folio number and e-mail address.

The Annual Report 2014-15 as circulated to the members of the Company is also availabls on tha
website of the Company www.sol.net.in.

10) Voting for transactlon of Business:
The business as set out in the Notice may be transacted and that;

(A} The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means in compliance with the
provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and the revised Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement.

(B) The Facility for voting, either through electranic voting system or ballot or palling paper shall
also be made available at the meeting and members attending the meeting who have not
already cast their vote may exercise their vote through ballot paper.

{C) The Members who have cast their vote by remote-e voting shall not be entitled to cast their
vote again. The procedure and instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:

The remote evoting period begins at 9.00 AM. on 26" September, 2015 and ends at 5 PM. on 29"
Septembar, 2015. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23 September 2015, may
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cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting

thereafter.

iYOpen your web browser during the voting petiod and log on to the e-voting website
www.evotingindia.com
i} Now click on “Shareholders” to cast your votes.

iii) User-ID

For Members holding shares in Demat Form:-

a) For CDSL:— 16 digits beneficiary ID

b} For NSDL:— 8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits Client ID For Members
holding shares in Physical Form:-

¢) Folio Number registered with the Company

iv} Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

v) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

vi) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

+ Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested io use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence
number in the PAN field.

+ In case the saguence number is less than 8 digiis enter the applicable numbar of 0's bafors|
the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your
name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RAOROO0001 in the PAN
field.

DoB

Enter the Date of Birth as recerded in your demat account or in the company records for the
said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

vii} Dividend
Bank
Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records
for the said demat account or folio.

+ Pleasa enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the datails are nof
recorded with the depository or company please enter the folio number or dient id in the
Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on SUBMIT” tab

ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selaction screen.
Howaver, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation” menu
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field.
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions
of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-
voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with
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any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

x) For Members haolding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote,

xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO" for vating. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vete, click on *OK”, else to change your vote,
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option
on the Voting page.

xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the

systen.

xviii) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

+ Non-Individual shareholders {i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are
required to log on to www.evotingindla.com and register themselvas as Corporates.

+ Ascanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to helpdesk. evoting@cdslindia.com.

+ After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin
login and password. The Gompliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish o vole on.

+ The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@edslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

+ Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attarney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

xix) Ih case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (“FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindla.com, under
help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

In case of members receiving the physical copy

1. Please follow all steps from 8l no {i) ta Sl no {XV) above to cast vote.

2. The Company has appointed MrS Sarveswar Reddy, Practicing Company Secretary, C.P. No.
7478,who in the opinion of the Board is a duly gualified person, as a Scrutinizer who will
collate the slectronic voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall
within a period of three working days from the date of conclusion of the shareholders
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meeting, submit his raport after consolidation of e-voting and the votes in the sharsholders
meeting, cast in favour of or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company. Results will be
uploaded on the Company’s website as well as intimated to the Stock Exchange (BSE).

3. The Scrutinizer shall within a period of not exceeding three (3) working days from the
conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of two (2) withesses not
in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer report of the votes cast in favour
or against if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

4. The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The results declared
along with scrutinizer report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.sol.net.in and
on the website of COSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the
Company and communicated to the BSE Limited.

5. Since the Company is required to provide members facility to cast their vote by electronic
means, shareholders of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialised farm, as on the cut off dated of 23 September 2015 and not casting their
vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the AGM.

Item No.5:
(Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 27" May, 2015 had appointed Mr. G
Viswanath (DIN: 07192232) as Nominee Director on behalf of Bank of India and holds his office
only upto this Anhual General Meeting. Pursuant to provisions of section 161(1) and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association, the Company has
received a notice from a shareholder proposing his candidature for the office of Director along with
requisite deposit.

A brief Profile of Mr. G Viswanath:

Mr G Viswanath (DIN: 07192232) aged 55 years, holds a B.Sc., and MBA degree from Andhra
University. He has joined Bank of India as a direct recruit officer in 1985. Since then he has been
working in various verticals and has gained extensive experience in Banking and Finance. He
headed the National Banking Group — South Audit office as Deputy General Manager. Currently he
is Zonal Manager for Telangana Zonse.,

Tha Board recommends the resolution set forth in tem no. 5 for the approval of members. Except
Mr G Viswanath being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key managerial personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or in interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution
set out at item no.5.

Item No.6:

Mr BHR Balaji (DIN: 005852538) aged 43 years is Graduate in Electronics and Telecommunication
Engineeting. Prior to promoting Southern Cnline he worked ih cholce Solutions Private Limited,
Sagar Soft {India) Limited, World Wide Web institute as Technical Consultant. Mr Balaji has vast
knowledge and experience in administration and support of intemet, intranet corporate networks,
enterprise solutions and other products. He has also development experience on web based
application. He has more than a decade experience in the IT field. His professional knowledge and
expertise would be of immense useful to the efficient functioning of the Technical Department. He
is on the Board of the Company since November 1998. He is currently looking after ISP
Qperations. He is also Director of Southern Biofe Biofuels Pvt Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of
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your Company. He does not hald any committee memberships in any company. Mr BHR Balaji
holds 7,11,657 equity shares of the Company.

Considering the qualifications and experience in managing affairs of the Company, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has recommended there-appointment of Mr. BHR Balaji as an
Executive Director for another period of three years with effect from 05th January, 2015 subject to
the approval of the sharsholders in the Annual General Meeting. He will be paid remuneration and
perquisites as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and within the lirnits
prescribed under sections 196, 197, 198 and Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 subject to overall ceiling fixed under Schedule V part 2 section | and Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 amended from time to time and on terms and conditions given hereunder;

l. Salary
Rs.2,00,000/- (Rupees Two lakhs only} per month
Il. Commission

1% of the amount of Net Profit before taxes (but after charging all expenses including depreciaticn
and managerial compensation} as appearing in the Audited Annual Accounts for each Financial Year
of the Company, unless otherwise decided by the Board for any financial Year, subject however, that
the total remuneration (i.e., salary, perquisites and commission} in any one financial year shall not
exceed the limits prescribed from time to time under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the
Companies Act 2013 and Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managsatial
Personnel) Rules 2014,

lil. Perquisites

Perquisites as follow will be paid and / or provided in addition to salary, subject however that the
amount of perquisites, if taxable as per Income Tax Act, 1261, shall be restricted to total remuneration
as per Sactions 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 3 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.

Part—A
a] Medical Reimbursement

Reimbursement of medical expenses actually incurred for self and family including dependent mother
and father, subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or 3 months' salary in a block of 3 years.

b] Leave Travel Concession

For self and family including dependent father and mother, to and from any place in India, once in a
year in accordance with the rules of the Company.

c] Club Fees

Fees of Club subject to a maximum of 2 clubs will be allowed, provided that no admission or life

membership fees shall be paid.
(11)
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Part—- B
a] Provident Fund

Company’s contribution to Provident Fund as per the scheme of the Company.
b] Pension / Superannuation Fund

Company's contribution to Pension / Superannuation Fund in accordance with the scheme of the
Company.

c] Gratuity

As per the rules of the Company, payable in accordance with the approved fund at a rate not
exceeding one-half month’s salary for each completed year of service.

Part—C
a] Car

Use of Company’s car with driver for business purposes.

b] Telephone

Free Telephone / Communication facilities at residence for business purposes.
IV. Other Benefits

Leave

On full pay and allowances as per rules of the Company, but not more than one month’s leave for
every 11 months of service. Leave not availed of shall be allowed to be encashed at the end of the
tenure and the same will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites.

V. Overall Remuneration

The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any financial yvear shall not exceed the limits
prescribed from time to time under Saclions 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and
Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.

In case of any doubt / discrepancy [ clarification that may arise with respect to payment of
remuneration in excess of that entitled under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Cempanies Act
2013 and Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules
2014, but not exceeding the overall limits prescribed under the Act, the same shall be determined and
decided by the Board.

VI. Minimum Remuneraticn

In tha event of loss or inadequacy of profits, in any financial year during the currency of tenure of
service, the payment of salary, commission, perquisites and other allowances shall be governed by
the limits prescribed under Sections 1986, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 3
of the Companies (Appointment and Remunetation of Managerial Personnel} Rules 2014, including
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, as may be for the time being in force.

VIl. Three months notice shall be required on either side for termination of services.
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In the opinion of the Board, Mr BHR Balaji proposed to be appointed as Executive Director fulfills
the conditions specified in the section 149(6) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made thersunder.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in ltem no 6 for the approval of members. Except
Mr BHR Balaji, being an appointes, none of the Diractors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or in interested, financial or otherwise, in the resoclution
set out at item no.6.

Item No. 7:

Mr K Radha Krishna (DIN: 01585940) aged 47 years is Graduate in Civil Engineering from
Nagarjuna University, Guntur. He has more than 24 years of experience. He has been the heading
the Finance department of the Company since its inception. He is one of the Promoter Director of
the Company and in association with other directors, actively involved in the establishment India’s
first commercial biadiesel production unit established by the Company. Prior to premoting Southern
Online, he was engaged in the business of software & hardware consultancy. He started his career
in the construction industry, associated in the execution of several projects such as Hindustan
Cables Lid., Larsen & Toubro and Telecom department etc.

Considering the qualifications and experience in managing affairs of the Company, the Nomination
ahd Remuneration Commitiee has recommended the re-appointmentof Mr. K Radha Krishna as
Whole Time Director & CFO for another period of three years with effect from 05th January, 2015
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. He will be paid
remuneration and perquisites as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and within thse limits prescribed under sections 196, 197, 198 and Schedula V and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 subject to overall ceiling fixed under Schedule V part 2
section [ and Il of the Companies Act, 2013 amended from time to time and on terms and conditions
given hereunder

l. Salary
Rs.2,00,000/- (Rupees Two lakhs only) per month
Il. Commission

1% of the amount of Net Profit before taxes (but after charging all expenses including depreciation
and managerial compensation} as appearing in the Audited Annual Accounts for each Financial Year
of the Company, unless otherwise decided by the Board for any financial Year, subject however, that
the total remuneration (i.e., salary, perquisites and commission} in any one financial year shall not
exceed the limits prescribed from time to time under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the
Companies Act 2013 and Rule 3 of the Companies (Appeintment and Remuneraticn of Managerial
Personnel) Rules 2014.

lll. Perquisites
Perquisites as follow will be paid and / or provided in addition o salary, subject however that the

amount of perquisites, if taxable as per Income Tax Act, 1961, shall be restricted to tofal
remuneration as per Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 3 of

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014,
(13)
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Part—-A
a] Medical Reimbursement

Reimbursement of medical expenses actually incurmred for self and family including dependent
mother and father, subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or 3 months’ salary in a block
of 3 years.

b] Leave Travel Concession

For self and family including dependent father and mother, to and from any place in India, once in a
year in accordance with the rules of the Company.

¢] Club Fees

Fees of Club subject to a maximum of 2 clubs will be allowsd, provided that no admission or life
membership fees shall be paid.

Part— B

a] Provident Fund

Company’'s contribution to Provident Fund as per the scheme of the Company.
b] Penslon f Superannuation Fund

Company's contribution to Pension / Superannuation Fund in accordance with the scheme of the
Company.

c] Gratulty

As per the rules of the Company, payable in accordance with the approved fund at a rate not
axcaading one-half month’s salary for each compleled year of service.

Part-C

a] Car

Use of Company’s car with driver for business purposes,

b] Telephone

Free Telephone / Communication facilities at residence for business purposes.
IV. Other Beneflts

Leave

On full pay and allowances as per rules of the Company, but not more than one month's leave for
every 11 months of service. Leave not availed of shall be allowed to be encashed at the end of the
tenure and the same will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites.

V. Overall Remuneration

The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any financial year shall not exceed the limits
prescribed from time to time under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013
and Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules
2014,
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In case of any doubt / discrepancy / clarification that may arise with respect to payment of
remuneration in excess of that entitled under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies
Act 2013 and Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managetrial Personnel)
Rules 2014, but not exceeding the overall limits prescribed under the Act, the same shall be
determined and decided by the Board.

V1. Minimum Remuneration

In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits, in any financial year during the currency of tenure of
service, the payment of salary, commission, perquisites and other allowances shall be govemed by
the limits prescribed under Sections 198, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule
3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014,
including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, as may be for the time being in force.

VII. Three months notice shall be required on either sids for termination of services.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr K Radha Krishna proposed to be appeinted as Director & CFO
fulfills the conditions specified in the section 148{6} and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereundsr,

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item no. 7 for the approval of members. Except
Mr K Radha Krishna being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key managerial personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or in interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution
set out at item no.7.

Item No. 8

Mr B Sreedhara Reddy (DIN: 01302512) aged 46 years is Graduate in Civil Engineering from
Nagarjuna University, Guntur. He was involved in several construction projects. He has experience
of more than 18 years in the field of construction and Information Technology. He is handling
administration and related activities of the Company. He is also director in Southern Biofe Biofusls
Private Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Southem Online Services Limited.
He does not hold anyCommittee Memberships in any Company. He is on the Board of the Company
since November 1998. Mr B Sreedhara Reddy holds 21,22,157 equity shares of the Company.

Considering the qualifications and experience in managing affairs of the Company, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has recommended the re-appointment of Mr. B Sreedhara Reddy as
Director Administration for another period of three years with effact from 05th January, 2015 subject
to the approval of the sharehclders in the Annual General Meeting. He will be paid remuneration
and perquisites as recommended by the Nomination and Remunearation and within the limits
prescribed under sections 196, 197, 198 and Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 subject to overall celling fixed under Schedule V part 2 section | and Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 amended from time to time and on the terms and conditions given under:;

I. Salary
Rs.2,00,000/- (Rupees Two lakhs only} per month
Il. Commlsslon

1% of the amount of Net Profit before taxes (but after charging all expenses including depreciation
and managerial compensation) as appearing in the Audited Annual Accounts for each Financial Year
of the Company, unless otherwise decided by the Board for any financial Year, subject however, that
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the total remuneration (i.e., salary, perquisites and commission} in any one financial year shall not
exceed the limits prescribed from time to time under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the
Companies Act 2013 and Rule 3 of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules 2014.

lll. Perqulsites

Perguisites as follow will be paid and / or provided in addition to salary, subject however that the
amount of perquisites, if taxable as per Ihcome Tax Act, 1961, shall be restricted to total
remuneration as per Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 3 of
the Companies {Appeointment and Remuneration of Managetial Personnel) Rules 2014.

Part- A
a] Medical Reimbursement

Reimbursement of medical expenses actually incurred for self and family including dependent mother
and father, subject te a ceiling of one month’s salary per year or 3 months' salary in a block of 3 years.

b] Leave Travel Concession

For self and family including dependent father and mother, to and from any place in India, once in a
year in accordance with the rules of the Company.

¢] Club Fees

Fees of Club subject to a maximum of 2 clubs will be allowed, provided that no admission or life
membership fees shall be paid.

Part— B
a] Provident Fund

Company’s contribution to Provident Fund as per the schame of the Company.
b] Pension / Superannuation Fund

Company’s contribution to Pension / Superannuation Fund in accordance with the scheme of the
Company.

c] Gratuity

As per the nules of the Company, payable in accordance with the approved fund at a rate not
exceeding one-half month's salary for each completed year of service.

Part— C
aJ] Car

Use of Company’s car with driver for business purposes.
b] Telephone

Free Telephone / Communication facilities at residence for business purposes.
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V. Cther Beneflts

Leave

On full pay and allowances as per niles of the Company, but not more than one month’s lsave for
every 11 months of service. Leave not availed of shall be allowed to be encashed at the end of the
tenure and the same will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites.

V. Overall Remuneration

The aggregate of salary, commission and perquisites in any financial year shall not exceed the limits
prescribed from time to time under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013
and Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules
2014.

In case of any doubt / discrepancy / clarification that may arise with respect to payment of
remuneration in excess of that entitled under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies
Act 2013 and Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel}
Rules 2014, but not exceeding the overall limits prescribed under the Act, the same shall be
determined and decided by the Board.

V1. Minimum Remuneration

In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits, in any financial year during the currency of tenure of
service, the payment of salary, commission, perquisites and other allowances shall be govemned by
the limits prescribed under Sections 196, 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule
3 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014,
including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, as may be for the time being in force.

VII. Three manths notice shall be required on sither side for termination of services.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr B Sreedhara Reddy proposed to be appointed as Director
Administration fuffills the conditions specified in the section 143(6} and other applicable provisicns
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

The Board recommeands the resolution set forth in ltem no 8 for the approval of members. Except

MrB Sreedhara Reddy being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key managerial personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or in interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution
set out at item no.8.

Item No.9:

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approvad the appointment and remuneration of M/s. Lavanya & Associates, Cost Accountants, to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2015-16.

The Resolution is recommended for your approval.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are
concerned or interested financial or otherwise in the resolution set out at item No.S.

Item No.10:

The Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”) as currently in force was adopted pursuant to
the provisions under the Companies Act, 1956. The Companies Act, 1956 has been superseded by
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the Companies Act, 2013. The references to specific sections of the Companies Act, 1956 in the
existing Articles of Association is hence to be amended to align the extant Articles with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.

Salient aspects of the proposed amended Articles:

Under the proposed amended Arlicles, salient aspects of sections of Table-F of Schedule | to the
Companies Act, 2013 which sets out the model Articles of Association for a Company limited by
shares have been adopted. As mentiohed in the previous para, changes that are required to be
carnried out pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder coming into force have been
duly camied out.

The resolution as set out in item no. 10 has been recommended by the Board of Directors for
approval of the Members by special resolution.

The proposed new draft of Articles of Association is also available for inspection by the Members at
the Registered Office of the Company on any working day excluding public holidays and Sunday
from the date here upto 30" September 2015.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way
are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolution set out at item No.10
of the Notice.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUALGENERAL MEETING
(Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Name of the Director Mr G Viswanath Mr BHR Balaji
Date of Birth 28.08.1960 12.04.1972
Date of Appointment 27.05.2015 05.01.2015
Qualifications MBA., B.E., (Electronics)

Expertise in specific
functional areas

Mr G Viswanath (DIN: 07192232)
aged 55 years is a Post Graduate in
Business Administration appointed
as Nominee Director on behalf of
Bank of India. His professional
knowledge and expertise would be
of immense useful to the efficient

Mr BHR Balaji (DIN: 00552538) aged 42
years is Graduate in Elecironics and
Telecommunication Engineering. Prior to
promoting Sauthemn Online he worked in
choice Solutions Private Limited, Sagar
Soft (India) Limited, world Wide Web

functioning of the Company. institute as Technical Consultant Mr Balaji
has vast knowledge and experience in
administration and support of intemet,
intranet corporate networks, enterprise
solutions and other products. He has also
development experience on web based
application. He has more than a decade
experience in the IT field. His professional
knowledge and expertise would be of
immense useful to the efficient functioning
of the Technical Department. He is on the
Board of the Company since Movember
1998. He is currently looking after ISP
Operations. He is also Director of Southern
Biofe Biofuels Pvt Ltd, a wholly owned
subsidiary of your Company. He doas not
hold any committee memberships in any
company.
List of GCompanies in Nil Southem Bicfe Biofuels Pvt Ltd
which outside Directorships
held as on 31.03.2015
Chairman/Member of
the Nil Nil
*Committees of other
Companies an which he/che
is a Member as on 31.03.2015
Number of equity shares Nil 711,657

held in the Company
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Name of the Director Mr K Radha Krishna Mr B Sreedhara Reddy
Date of Birth 12.02.1968 05.06.1969
Date of Appointment 05.01.2015 05.01.2015
Qualifications B.E., (Civil) B.E., (Civil)

Expertise in specific
functional areas

Mr K Radha Krishna {DIN: 01585940)
aged 47 vyears is Graduate in Civil
Engineering from Nagarjuna University,
Guntur. He has more than 24 years of
experience. He has been the heading the
Finance department of the Company
since its inception. He is one of the
Promoter- Director of the Company and
in association with other diractors,
actively involved in the esiablishmeni
India’s first commercial biodiessl
production unit established by the
Company. Prior to promoting Southern
Online, he was engaged in the business
of software & hardware consultancy. He
started his carcer in the construction
industry.

Mr B Sreedhara Reddy (DIN:
1302512) aged 46 years is Graduate
in Civil Engineering from Nagarjuna
University, Guntur. He was involved in
several construction projects. He has
axpetience of more than 18 years in
the fisld of construction and
Iformation  Technology. He s
handling administration and related
activities of the Company. Ha is also
director in Southem Biofe Biofuels
Private Limited a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and
Southem Onlfina Services Limited. He
does not hold any commitee
Memberships in any Company. He is
on the Board of the Coempany since
November 1998,

List of Companies in
which outside Directorship
held as on 31.03.2015

Southern Biofe Biofuels Pvt Ltd.
Southem Online Services Limitad

Southern Biofe Biofuels Pyt Lid.
Southern Online Services Limited

Chairman/Member

of the

*Commiftees of other
Companies on which hefshe is
a Member as on 31.03.2015

Nil

Nil

Number of equity shares
held in the Company

25,34,657

21,22,157
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members,
The Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the Seventeenth Annual Report of the Company
together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The performance during the period ended 31% March, 2015 has been as under:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Total Income 24736.65 2015114
Total Expenditure 27951.86 22677.89
Profit before Tax {3215.21) {25626.75)
Less: Provision for taxation (2045.58) (819.80)
Net Loss after Tax {1169.63) {1706.95)

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS:

Operations:

The total revenue of the Company for the financial year ended 31*March, 2015 is Rs. 24736.65 Lakhs
as compared to the previous year's total revenue of Rs. 20151.14 1akhs. During this financial year the
Company has incurred a net loss of Rs.1169.63 Lakhs as against the previous year's net loss of
Rs.1706.95 Lakhs. The net loss incurred is due to delay in getting the working capital limits and also
plant was shutdown since October 2014 due to the damages caused by Hudhud cyclone.

Prospects:

Encouragement from Government under leadership of Hon'ble Prime Minister Sri Narender Modi, the
Govermnment of India initiated the usage of Bio diesel in all transport sectors due to which the Bio diesel
industry has become much more attractive than earlier within India itself. The Company has received
good amount of Biodiesel supply orders from Road Transport Corporations and Indian Railways,
besides the existing orders from domestic and international markets. Hence the Bio diesel business in
India will emerge as cne of the most attractive and important sector.

ISP Division
The Company presently provides internet services as a Licensed ISP. The Company Services include
the following:

- Server Co-Location

- Leased Line services (Terrestrial and RF links)

- Broad band services

- Networking solutions.

- Web hosting services

Bio diesel Division:

The Company has two Bio diesal units, cne is at Samsthan Narayanpur (V&M), Nalgonda District,
Telangana State with 36TPD capacity and the other is at APIIC, SEZ, Atchutapuram, Rambilli Mandal,
Visakhapatriam, Andhra Pradesh state with 250 TPD capacity.

The Company has been supplying Bio diesel to various well reputed customers like India Railways,
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Telangana State Road Transport Corporation, Sovino foods Pyt Ltd, Biking Foods Pvt Ltd, Jubilant
Generics Ltd, Trimex Sands Pwi Itd, 5.5 B Forge Pwt Lid, Coronet Foods PVt Lid, Bio Future Ltd,
Baharat Petroleurn Corporation Ltd, My ECO Energy Ltd and other traders ete.,

Plant at Visakhapatnam:

The Company has executed 6000 MTs UCOME / PUCO order of Europe successfully. All the extemal
damages of Hudhud cyclone have been restored and very shortly will commence the operations after
thorough check for the intemal damages.

Plant at Tondiarpet, Chennai:

The 30 TPD Bicdiesel plant for Indian Rallways Organization for Alternate Fuels (IROAF), Ministry of
Railways is under implementation by the Company and is expected to commence the cperations hefore
the end of this year.

IROAF order for another Blodlesel plant at Ralpur, Chattisgarh:

Company has become L1 in the tender of executing the Raipur Bio diesel plant at Chattisgarh for IRAQOF
and awaiting for the execution order.

Bio diesel orders:

The Company has received Biodiesel supply Crders from Indian Railways, Telangana State Road
Transport Corporation and many orders from Advait.

ISCC certificate:

Company has acquired prestigious International Sustzinability and Carbon Certification (ISCC EU)
which is approved by European Commission by Intertek, Germany.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with Stock Exchanges, the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report is enclosed as a part of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

Your Company has taken adequate steps to adhers to all the stipulations laid down in Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement. A report on Corporate Govermnance is included as a part of this Annual Report.
Certfficate from the Statutory Auditors of the company M/s. P Murali & Co., Chartered Accountants
confirmiing the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 48 of the
Listing Agreement is included as a part of this report.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES:

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2015-16 to BSE where the
Company’s Shares are listed.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES:

82.71% of the company’s paid up Equity Share Capital is in dematerialized form as on 318t March, 2015
and balance 7.29% is in physical form. The Company's Registrars are Mis Aarthi Consultants Pvt. Ltd.,
having their registered office at 1-2-285, Domalguda, Hyderabad - 500 029,
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANANGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

Pursuant to the provisions of the section 161{1} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles
of Association of the company, Mr. G Viswanath is appointed as Nominee Director {Bank of India)
who shall hold office only up to the date of this Annual General Meeting. Now the Board proposes
to appeint him as Nominge Director (Bank of India) not liable to retire by rotation.

Notice has been received from a Member proposing candidature of the Director namely Mr.G
Viswanath for the office of Director of the Company. A brief profile of proposed Nominee Director (Bank
of India), including nature of his expertise, is provided in the Annual Report.

Mr. N Satish Kumar will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Mesting and, being
gligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

Mr K. Radha Krishna will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being sligible,
offer himself for re-appointment.

Mr BHR Balaji re-appointed as an Executive Director for a period of three years w.e.f. Sth January 2015.

Mr K. Radha Krishna re-appointed as an Whole Time Director & CFO for a period of three years w.e f.
Sth January 2015.

Mr B. Sreedhara Reddy re-appointed as an Director - Administration for a period of three years w.e f.
5th January 2015.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS:

The Company has received a declaration from MsT Rohini Reddy, Mr Bachala Ashok and Mr
Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi directers of the company to the sffect that they are meeting the criteria of
independence as provided in Sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are
annexed herewith. (Annexure — A)

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

During the Financial Year 2014-15 the Board of Directars mat 9 times on the following dates:

09" April 2014, 30" May 2014, 18" July 2014, 14™ August 2014, 13" September 2014, 01 October
2014, 14" November 2014, 12" February 2015 and 30" March 2015.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your Company hereby state and
confirm that;

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31 * March, 2015, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
b} they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudant sc as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for the same period;

c} the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeqguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concem basis;

a} they have laid down intermnal financial cantrols in the company that are adequate and were operating
effectively.

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

these are adequate and are operating effectively.
(23)
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AUDITORS:

i) Statutory Auditors:
The Auditors, Mis. P Murali & Co., Chartered Accouniants, Hyderabad retire at this Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appeointment.

i) Cost Auditors:
M/s. Lavanya & Associates, Cost Accountants were appoeinted as Cost Auditors for auditing the cost

accounts of your Company for the financial year 2015-16 by the Board of Directors. The Cost
Audit Report for the year 2013-14 has been filed under XBRL mode within the due date of filing.

iii) Internal Auditors
M.M Reddy & Co., Chartered Accouniants, Hyderabad shall be the Intemmal Auditors of the Company.
iv} Secretarlal AudIt:

According to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Secretarial
Audit Report submitted by Company Secretary in Practice is enclosed as a part of this report
(Annexure-1.)

AUDITORS REPORT:

The Board has duly reviewed the Statutory Auditors Report on the Accounts for the year ended 31%
March 2015 and has noted that the same does not have any reservation, qualification or adverse
remarks, however the Board decided to further strengthen the existing system and procedures.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

The Board has duly reviewed the Secretarial Auditor Report for the year ended 31 March 2015 and has
noted that the same does not have any reservation, qualification or adverse remarks.

CAPITALOF THE COMPANY

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs 75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Crores only) divided
into 7,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each. During the year the company has allotted 77,15,414 Equity
shares of Rs 10/- each. The paid up capital of the Company is Rs 58,9932 830 divided into 5,89 93,288 aquiity
shares of Rs 10/- each.

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES:

Southern Biofe Biofuels Pvt Ltd (SBBF) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. SBBF was
incorporated on 08.05.2002 with an authorized share capital of Rs.34,40,000/-. SBBF initially focused on
the establishment and production of biodiesel, the activity of which has been taken over by Southemn
Onling Bio Technokogies Ltd. The Company has no operations in the last financial year.

INVESTMENT IN MARVEL BIC CILFZE:

Company has acquired in the financial year 2015-16, M/s. Marvel Bio Oil FZE in Hamriyah Free Zone,
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates, to facilitate the trading activity in Middle East. Subsaquent to acquisition
M/s Marvel Bio Oil FZE has become 100% Subsidiary of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits falling within the meaning of Sec. 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014, during the financial year under
review.
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DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

Your Company has well established procedures for internal control across its various locations,
commensurate with its size and operations. The organization is adequately staffed with qualified and
experienced personnel for implementing and monitoring the internal control environment. The internal
audit function is adequately resourced commensurate with the operations of the Company and reports
to the Audit Committee of the Board.

INSURANCE:
The properties and assets of your Company are adequately insured.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

Directors are happy to report that your Company is compliant with the Corporate Govemance
requirements as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. A separate section
on Corporate Govemance and Managément Discussion and Analysis together with a certificate from the
Statutory Auditor confirming compliance is set out in the Annexure forming part of this report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Event based Disclosures

During the year under review, the Company has not taken up any of the following activities:
1. Issue of sweat equity share: Not Applicable (NA)

2. Issue of shares with differential rights: NA

3. Issue of shares under employee’s stock option scheme: NA

4. Disclosure on purchase by company or giving of loans by it for purchase of its shares: NA
5. Buy back shares: NA

8. Disclosure about revision: NA

7. Preferential Allotment of Shares: Yes

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS:

Your Directors are pleased to record their sincere appreciation of the contribution by the staff at all
levels in the improved performance of the Company.

None of the employees is drawing Rs. 5,00,000/- and above per month or Rs.60,00,000/- and above in
aggregate per annum, the limits prescribed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.
The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of Tha
Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal
Complaint Committee {ICC} has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees are covered under this policy.
The following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed during the
calendar year.

No. of complaints received: Nil

No. of complaints disposed off: Nil
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

Information required under section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Campanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given in the Annexure-B to this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPCNSIBILITY (CSR):

Corporate Social Responsibility required to be disclosed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the
company. Hence, composition of committee is not required.

VIGIL MECHANISM:;

In pursuant to the provisions of section 177{8) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for
directors and employees to repart genuine concems has been established. The Vigil Mechanism Policy
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.sol.net.in under investors.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Pursuantto the Share holders approval in the Annual General Meeting held on 30" September 2014,
the Company took on lease of Four wheeler Vehicles (Cars) from Three Whole Time Directors of the
Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Retumn in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-2.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The company has not given loans, Guarantees or made any investments during the year under review.

RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO EACH DIRECTOR:

Under section 197(12} of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 5(1)(2) & (3) of the
Companies{Appointment & Remuneration} Rules, 2014, ratio of remuneration to maiden employees for
Mr. N Satish Kumar is 1: 2.6 times in rupees and for Mr. K Radha Krishna is 1: 1.6 times in rupees.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE:

The Company has complied with the required provisions relating to Statutory compliance with respect to
affairs of the Company with all respects.

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION CF A RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has been addressing various tisks impacting the Company and the policy of the Company
on risk management is provided elsewhere in this Annual Report in Management Discussion and
Analysis.

UNCLAIMED SECURITIES DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:

As on date, there are 8239 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, which were allotted in Initial Public Offer and
Rights Issue of 2005, were lying in the escrow account due to non-availability of 18 shareholders comrect
particulars. Despite various reminders to them, by Aarthi Consultants Private Limited our Registrars and
Share Transfer Agents, no response has been received. As a result, the said unclaimed shares are
credited to Southern Online Bio Technologies Ltd - Unclaimed Securities Demat Suspense Account in




-
& sar

view of compliance of Clause 5A of the Listing Agreement. Such shareholders may approach either the
Company or our Registrars and Share Transfer Agents with their correct particulars and proof of their
identity for crediting requisite shares from the Demat Suspense Account to their individual demat
Account. The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claims the shares.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In accordance with Accounting Standards AS — 21, notified by Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules 20086, the consolidated financial statements covered in this annual report by the Company include
financial information of its Subsidiary M/s Southem Biofe Biofusls Pvt Ltd forms part of this annual
report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Directors take this opporiunity to express their thanks to various departments of the Central and State
Govemmment, Indian Railways Organisation for Alternate fuels, Indian Rallways, Telangana
State Road Transport Corporation, Bankers, employees, Material Suppliers, Customers and
Shareholders for their continued support and guidance.

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedicated efforts put in by the
Employses of the Company at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Hyderabad Sd/- Sdf
Date :07.08.2015 N Satish Kumar K Radha Krishna
Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFQ
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ANNEXURE A
DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS

The Board of Directors
M/s Southern Online Bio Technologies Limited.

Dear Sir,

I undertake to comply with the conditions laid down in Sub-clause of Clause 49 read with section
149 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to conditions of independence and in
particular:

(a) | declare that up to the date of this certificate, | did not have any material pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company, its promoter, its directors, senior management or its holding
Company, its subsidiary and associates which may affect my independence as director on the Board
of the Company. | further declare that | will not enter into any such relationshipftransactions.
However, if and when | intend to enter into such relationshipsftransactions, whether material or non-
material | shall keep prior approval of the Board. | agree that | shall cease to be an independent
directorfrom the date of entering into such relationshipftransaction.

(b) | declare that | am not related to promoters or persons ocoupying management positions at the
Board level or at one level below the board and also have not been executive of the Company in
the immediately preceding three financial years.

(c} | was not a partner or an executive or was also not partner or executive during the preceding
thres years, of any of the following:

(i) the statutory audit firm or the intemal audit firm that is associated with the
Company and

(ii) the legal firm(s) and consulting firm(s) that have a material association with the company

(d) | have nct been a material suppliers, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the
company, which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substantial shareholdsr of
the Campany i.e., owning two percent or more of the block of voting shares.

Thanking You.
Yours Faithfully,
Sd/-
Cate: 09.04.2014 T Rohini Reddy
Place: Hyderabad {Independent director}
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DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS

The Beard of Directors
M/s Southern Online Bio Techneologies Limited,

Dear Sir,

I undertake to comply with the conditions laid down in Sub-clause of Clause 49 read with section
149 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to conditions of independence and in
particular:

(a) | declare that up to the date of this certificats, | did not have any material pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company, its promoter, its directors, senior management or its holding
Company, its subsidiary and associates which may affect my independence as director on the
Board of the Company. | further declare that | will not enter into any such relationship/transactions.
However, if and when | intend to enter into such relationshipsfransactions, whether material or non-
material | shall keep prior approval of the Board. | agree that | shall cease to be an independent
director from the date of entering into such relationship/fransaction.

(b} | declare that | am not related to promoters or persons occupying management positions at tha
Board level or at one level below the board and also have not been executive of the Company in
the immediately preceding three financial years.

{c) | was not a pariner or an executive or was also not partner or executive during the preceding
three years, of any of the following:

(i) the statutory audit firm or the intermal audit firm that is associated with tha
Company and

(i} the legal firm(s) and consulting firm(s) that have a material association with the company

{(d) | have not been a material suppliers, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the
company, which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substantial shareholder of
the Company i.e., owhing two percent or more of the block of voting shares.

Thanking You.
Yours Faithfully,
Sd-
Date: 09.04.2014 Bachala Ashok
Place: Hyderabad (Independent director)
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DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS CN ANNUAL BASIS

The Board of Dirsctors
M/s Southern Online Bio Technologies Limited,

Dear Sir,

| undertake to comply with the conditions laid down in Sub clause of Clause 49 rsad with section
149 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to conditions of independence and in
particular:

(a) | declare that up to the date of this certificate, | did not have any material pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company, its promoter, its directors, senior management or its holding
Company, its subsidiary and assoclates which may affect my independence as director on the
Board of the Company. | further declare that | will not enter into any such relationship/transactions.
However, if and when lintend to enter into such relationships/transactions, whether material or non-
material | shall keep prior approval of the Board. | agree that | shall cease to be an independent
director from the date of enteting into such relationship/transaction.

{b} | declare that | am not related to promoters or persons cccupying management positions at the
Board level or at one level below the board and also have not been executive of the Company in
the immediately preceding three financial years.

{¢) | was not a partner or an executive or was also not partner or executive during the preceding
three years, of any of the following:

(i) the statutory audit firm or the Internal audit firm that is assoclated with the
Company and

(i} the legal firm(s) and consulting firm(s) that have a material association with the company

{d) | have not been a material suppliers, service provider or customer or lessor or lessee of the
company, which may affect independence of the director, and was not a substantial shareholder of
the Company i.e., owning two parcent or mars of the block of voting shares.

Thanking You.
Yours Faithfully,
S8d/-
Date: 09.04.2014 Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi
Place; Hyderabad {Independent director)
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Annexure-|
FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

{Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2012 and
Rule & of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2015

Te
The Members of
M/s. Southern online Bio Technologies Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by M/s. Southern online Bio Technologies limited (hereinafter called “the Company™).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conhducts/statutory compliances and expressing my oplnion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other
Records maintained by the Company and also the infermation provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the financial year commencing from 1% April, 2014 and ended 317 March, 2015, complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board process and
compliance mechanismin place to the extent, in the manner and subjectto the repaorting made hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recerds maintained by
M/s. Southern online Bio Technologies Limited (“The Company") for the financial year ended on 317 March,

2015, according to the provisions of;

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under for specified sections notified and came in
ta effectfrom 12" September, 2013 and sections and Rules notified and came in to effect from 1" April, 2014;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made there under;
fii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framead there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) and Qverseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Berrowings;

v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1892 {SEBI Acth;

2. During the yearthe Company has allotted 77,15 ,414 equity shares on preferential basis to promoters and
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others in accordance with The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 as amendad front time te time.

3. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed underthe Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act) were not applicable to the Company under the financial year under report
except yearly or event based disclosures in terms of SEBI Takecver Regulations & Insider Trading
Regulations.

I. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations,2011;
ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares} Regulations, 2009;
iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
iv. The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Registrarsto an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations.
1993, regarding the Companies Actand dealing with client;
v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
vi.The Securities and Exchange Beard of India {(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

4. \We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company secretaries of India under the provisions of
Companies Act, 1956 and
ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited;

We further report that: -

The Company since engaged in the manufacture of Bio-diesel is subjected to compliance of The Environment
(Protection) Act, 1986, The Hazardous Wastes (Managemeant, Handling & Transhoundary Movement) Rules,
2008, The Water (Prevention & Cantrol of Pallution) Act, 1974 and accordingly has complied with the said laws
and obtained license from State Pollution Conirol Board for carrying on operations and alse filed necessary
returns with in the time period.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directers and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under reviewwere carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We, further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines

Place: Hyderabad For 5.S. Reddy & Associates
Date: 07.08.2015

S. Sarveswar Reddy
Practicing Company Secretaries
C.P.No: 7478
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Annexure A

To
The Members of
M/s. Sauthern online Bio Technologies Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management cof the company. Our
responsibilityisto express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices we followed provide areasonable basis for auropinion.

3. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

4. The compliance of pravisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

5. The secretarial Audit reportis neither an assurance asto future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the managementhas conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Hyderabad For 5.5. Reddy & Associates
Date: 07.08.2015

S. Sarveswar Reddy
Practicing Company Secretaries
C.P No: 7478
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ANNEXURE - B

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNCLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING
AND OUTGO ETC:

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

(a) Conservation of Energy:
The Company has undertaken significant measures to reduce the energy consumption by using
energy efficient machines and equipment. The Company also undertakes evaluation of latest
technology and invests in making its infrastructure more energy efficient.

(b} Research and Development and Technology Absorption:

Your company will continuea to focus and invest in its R & D activities in the production of biodiessl
and in providing World Class ISP services to its customers.

{c} (i) Foreign exchange eamings

(Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Export of Goods 7.592.85 10,095.73
Total 7,592.85 10,085.73

{(ii} Foreign exchange Outflow

{Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.214
For Purchases 8301.23 8018.55
Membership Fee Nil Nil
Total 8301.23 8018.55
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ANNEXURE -C
FORM AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/amangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub sacltion (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain
arm’s length transaction under third proviso is given below:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Sl. No Particulars Details
a) | Name (s) of the related party & Mr N Satish Kumar, K Radha Krishna,
hature of relationship and Mr B Sreedhara Reddy, Whole
Time Directors of the Company.
b) [ Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Four Wheeler Vehicles (Cars) on
Lease to Wholg time Directors of the
Company.
¢} | Duration of the contracts/arrangementsitransactions Three years
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangementy Rs 85,000 per month per car
or transaction including the value, if any
e) | Date of approval by the Board, if any 14" August 2014.
(Special Resolution was passed in the
Annual General Meeting held
on 30th September 2014)
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 07.08.2015

For Southern Online Bio Technologies Ltd.

Sd/- sdi-
N Satish Kumar K Radha Krishna
Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFQ
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ANNEXURE -2

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN FORM MGT 2
(Pursuant to Section 82 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 12{1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014)

Financial Year ended on 31.03.2015

|. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

i | CIN ;| L72900TG1998PLC030463
i | Registration Date ;| 09.11.1988
iii | Name of the Company ;| SOUTHERN ONLINE BIO TECHNOLOGIES
LTD.
iv [ Category/Sub-category of the . | Company having Share Capital
Company
v | Address of the Registered office - | #8-3-833/173, Kamalapuri Colony,
& contact details Phase-ll, Hyderabad — 500073

Tel:(040) 4922 1999, Fax: {040} 4922 1998
Website : www .sol.net.in
Email : info@sol.net.in

vi | Whether listed company : | Yes (Listed in BSE)
vii| Name, Address & contact details of thel : | Aarthi Consultants Pvt. Ltd.
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 1-2-285, Domalguda,

Hyderabad - 500 029

Phone: 040 - 27642217 / 27638111
Fax: 040-27632184

Email: info@aarthiconsultants.com

I.LPRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

At" t?de business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
sta

]| Name & Descripticn of main NIC Code of the % to total

No. products/services Product /service turhover of
the company

1 Manufacture of Biodissel 40107 37

2 Trading of Used Cocking il 63023 61
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lil. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

81 |Name & Address CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE
No. |of the Company SUBSIDIARY/! SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD
1 [Southern Blofe U40107TG2002PTCO38919 Subsidiary 98.97% 2(87)
Biofuels Pvt. Ltd.
2. Marvel Bio Oil Foreign Subsidiary| 100% 2(87)
FZE
Sharjah, UAE
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SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capltal Breakup as percentage of Total Equity

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the Ne. of Shares held at the end of %
Shareholders beginning of the year the year Change
during
the year

Demat | Physical | Total %of | Demat | Physical | Total % of
Tatal Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters 9767721 0| 89767721 18.05| 115550861
{1} Indian

a} Indlvidualf HUF
b} Central Govt
¢) State Gowt (s)
d} Bodles Corp.
a} Banks/Fl

f) Any Other.
Sub-total {A) (1):- 9767721 0| 9767721 19.05| 11555081
(2) Foreign
a) NRls - 0 0 1} 0
Individuals
b} Other -
Individuals
¢) Bodies Carp. 0 0 0 o
d} Banks ! FI
a) Any Other.... 0 0 o 0
Sub-total (A) (2):-

Total
shareholding of 767721 0| 976772 18.05( 11555081

Promoter (A) =
(AN 1+HAK 2)

=

11555081 18.59 054

oo o a
oo oca
[ == = =]
oo o0

=

11355081 19.59 0.54

[=]
[=]
[=]
o
[=]
=
[e=]
o
=

[~]

11555081 13.59 0.54

B. Public
Sharehclding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b} Banks!FI

¢) Central Govt

dj State Govl(s)
e} Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0

!
g;’;ﬁ:‘" o8 7369450 7360450 |  14.37| 4975125\  7730036| 12705181 843 (5.94)

h) Foreign Ventare
Capital Funds

=2 0 oo o
S ooa S
oo oQ o
o Cc oo o
(=2 — I — I — I — ]
(=2 — I — ]
QO Cc o0 o
fom B e B o B R )
[= = = B = = ]

i) Others {specify)
Sub-total {B)(1}:- 7369450 0| 7389450 14.37| 4975125 7730038 12705181 21.53 7.16
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. 5476495 47046 6584741 12.86| 8033486 47045 6080542 10.31 (2.55)
i) Indian

iiy Overseas
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Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of %
Shareholders beginning of the year the year Change
during
the year
Demat | Physical | Total %of | Demat | Physical | Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
b) Individuals
I Individual
sharshalders
holding nominal
share capltal upto
Rs. 1 lakh
i) Individual 5971798 308567 | 6280365 12.25| 5981578 304777| 6206355 10.66 (1.59)
sharshaklers
holding nominal
share capltal In 13413500 | 3868369 | 17281950  33.70| 16627529 461600 17089129  28.97 (4.73)
oxcess of Rs 1 lakh
NRls 2444441 71300 2515741 491| 3163303 71300 3234603 5.48 0.57
Overseas
Corporate Bodies
Cloaring Members o 10000 10000 0.02 0 10000 10000 0.02 0
Foreign Nationals 181795 a| 181795 0.35| 736315 0| 726315 1.23 0.88
o) Others (specify) | 1276102 o| 1278102 248| 1278102 0| 1278102 218 D.33
Sub-total ()(2):- o ] 0 0 30000 0 30000 0.05 0.05
Tolal Public 20835421| 4305282 | 34140703 66.58 | 33838323 894723 | 34733045 58.88 (7.70)
Shareholding (B} =
{B)(1) + {B}(2) 37204871| 4305282 41510153 80.95| 38813448 |  BE24750| 47438207 80,41 (0.54)
C. Shares held by ) ¢ 0 0 D 0 0 0 a
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 46972502 4305282 | §1277874 100| 50368528 8624759 58993288 100 15.05
{A+B+C)
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(i) Shareholding of Promoters

sl Shareholder's | Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the and of the
No. Name of the year year
No. of |% of total| % of Shares | No. of |% of total| % of Shares |% change
Shares| Shares | Pledged/ | Shares | Shares | Pledged! | inshare
of the |encumbered ofthe |encumbered| holding
company to total company to total during
shares shares the year
1 |Mr N Satish Kumar | 5271292 10.28 8542\ 8027652 10.22 10.22 1.28
2 |Mr K Radha Krishna | 1973657 3.85 2.06| 2534657 4.30 4.30 0.95
3 |MrBHR Balaiji 711657 1.39 089 711657 1.20 0.77
4 |Mr B Sreedhara 1652157 322 2.06| 2122157 3.60 0.77 0.80
Reddy
5 |Ms K Subhashini a7500 0.19 - 97500 0.17 - 0.00
6 |Ms K Sumithra 51000 0.10 - 51000 0.09 - 0.00
7 |Ms N Rama Dewi 10458 0.02 - 10458 0.02 - 0.00
Total 9767721 19.05 10.43| 11555081 19.59 18.89 3.03

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl Sharaholding at the Cumulatlve Sharsholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of % of total
shares of shares shares of the
the company
company
1 | At the beginning of the year G767721 19.06 9757721 19.06
2 | Date wise Increase/ Decrease in | 1787360 equity 3.03 1787360 3.03
Promoters Share holding during shares allotted
the year specifying the reasons to promoters
for increase/decrease {e.g. through
allotment/transfer/bonus/ sweat preferential
aquity atc): allotment on
30.05.2014.
3 | Atthe End of the year 11555081 19.59 11555081 19.59
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):

Sl Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year
For Each of the Top 10 | No. of shares % of total Na. of % of total
Shareholders shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1 | Atthe beginning of the 17835700 34.78 | 17835700 34.78
year
2 | Date wise No equity
Increase/Decrease in shares allotted
Share holding during the to top 10
year Shareholders } } )
specifying the reasons for during the year
increase/decrease (e.g. 2014-15
allotment/ transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):
3 | At the End of the year (or 19077959 3234 | 19077959 3234
on the date of separafion, if
separated during the year)

{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
For Each of the No. of shares % of total No. of shares | % of total shares
Directors and KMP shares of the of the company
company
1 | At the beginning of the 9664363 18.85 9664363 18.85
year
2 | Date wise Increase f 1787360 - - -
Decreass in Share equity shares
holding during the year allotted to
specifying the reasons promotgrs an
for increase / decrease 30" May
(e.g. 2014 through
allotment / transfer / Preferential
bonus! sweat equity allotment
etc):
3 | Atthe End of the year 11451723 19.41 11451723 19.41
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V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

{Rs in Lakhs)

Secured Total
Particulars Loans Unsecured | hooosits| Indebtedness
excluding Loans
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the 12895.89 601.75 - 13497.64
financial year
i} Principal Amount 0.13 - - 0.13
ii) Interest due but not paid
iiil) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+i+iii) 12896.02 601.75 - 13497.77
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
. Addition 1687.27 201.60 - 1888.87
. Reduction - {596.80) - (596.80)
Net Change 1687.27 {395.20) - 1292.07
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
i Principal Amount 1458316 208.55 - 14789.71
i) Interest dus but not paid 9.37 - - 9.37
iii) Interest accrued but not due ) - B -
Total (i+ii+iii) 14592.53 206.55 - 14799.08
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andfor Manager
(Rs in Lakhs)

s Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
No. |  Particulars of Total
Remuneration |MrN Satish |Mr K Radha| Mr B MrBHR |[MsG o

Kumar Krishna Sreedhara Balaji Anupama, | Amount
Managing WTD Reddy WTD cs

Director WTD KMP

1. | Gross salary

(a) Salary as per 19.20 12.00 12.00 12.00 6.12 61.32

provisions
contalned In
saction 17{1) of the
Income-tax Act,
1961

{b} Value of
perquisites ufs
17(2) Income~tax
Act, 1961

{c) Prefits in lieu of
salary under
section 17(3)
Incoms- tax Act,
1961

2. | Stock Option - - - _ _ _

@

Sweat Equity - - - -

4. | Commission
- as % of profit - - - -
- others, speclfy

5_ | Others, please specify - - - - - -

Total (A) 19.32 12.00 12.00 12.00 6.12 61.32
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VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Compounding

T Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
ype the Description | Penalty/ (RD/ made If
Companies Punishment/ NCLT/Court) any {give
Act Compounding detalls)
fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment Nil

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment Nil

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment Nil
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

a) Structure and Developments, Opportunities and Threats, Performance, outlook,
Risks and Concerns:

Tha total revenue of the Company for the financial year ended 31*March, 2015 is Rs. 24736.65 Lakhs
as compared to the previous year's total revenue of Rs. 20151.14 1akhs. During this financial year the
Company has incurred a net loss of Re.1169.63 Lakhs as against the previous year's net loss of
Rs.1706.95 Lakhs. The net loss incurred is due to dslay in getting the working capital limits and plant
was shutdown since October 2014 due to the damages caused by Hudhud cyclone.

Encouragemsnt from Government under leadsrship of Hon’ble Prime Minister Sri Narsnder Modi, the
Govemment of India initiated the usage of Bio diesel in all transport sectors due to which the Bio diesel
industry has become much more attractive than earlier within India itself. The Biofuel policy dealing
with bio ethanal and biodiesel aims to main stream fuels into the energy and transportation sector to
address Issues like climate change, energy security and rural unemployment.

The Company has received good amount of Biodiesel supply orders from Road Transport
Corporations, Indian Railways and many orders from Advait besides the existing orders from domestic
and international markets. Hence the Bio diesel business in India will emerge as one of the most
attractive and important sector.

b) Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy:

The Company has adequate internal control systems and procedures in all operational areas and at all
levels equipment’'s procuremsant, finance, administration, marketing and personnel departments. The
Company also has Internal Audit systems commensurate with its size and nature of business. The
internal audit function will be done by a firm of Chartered Accountants. The Audit committee reviews
the internal audit reports and the adequacy of intemal centrols from time to tima.

¢) Financial and Operational Performance:
The Highlights of Financial Operational Performance are given below :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2014 -15 2013 -14
Total Income 24736.65 20151.14
Total Expenditure 27951.86 22677.89
Profit before Tax (3215.21) (2526.75)
Less: Provision for taxation (2045.58) (8142.80)

Net Loss after Tax (1169.63} {1706.95)

The net loss incurred is due to delay in getting the working capital limits and plant was shutdown since
October 2014 due fo the damages caused by Hudhud cyclone.

d)} Human Resources Development and Industrial Relations:

The Company believes that the quality of its employees is the key to its success in the long run and
is committed to provide necessary human resource development.

Industrial relations during the year are cordial and the Company is committed to maintain the same

in future.
{45 )
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of Compliance to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement on Corporate Governance, your
Company is complying with the guidelines. The report for current year is as follows:

Company's Philosophy:

Comporate govemancs is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at
enhancing an crganization’s wealth generating capacity. This is ensured by taking ethical business
decisions and conducting business with a firm commitment and values while meeting stakeholders
expectations, that our company affairs are managed in a fair and transparent manner. This is vital to
gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders. Our corporate governance framework ensures that we
make timely disclosures and share accurate information regarding our financials and performance, as
well as the leadership and governance of the Company.

SBTL is committed to continually evolving and adopting appropriate corporate govemance best
practices,

DATE OF REPORT
The information provided in the Report on Corporate Govemance for the purpose of unanimity is as on
31st March, 2015. The Report is updated as on the date of the report wherever applicable.

1) Board of Directors:

A) Composition

The surrent policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and independent Directars to maintain the
independence of the Board, and separate its functions of govemance and management. As on 31%
March 2015 the Board consists of 8 Directors, four of whom are Executive or Whole Time Directors,
Three are Non Executive and Independent Directors, and one Director is Nominee Director. The
composition of the Board is in conformity with clause 49 of the Listing Agreements entered into with the
Stock Exchanges and meets the stipulated requirements.

None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 committees or Chairman of more than
5 companies across all the Companiss in which he/ she is a Director. The Directors have mada
necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public companies as on 31¥March, 2015.

The names and categories of Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the
year and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in
other companies are given balow.

Composition and category of Directors on the Board for the year 2014-15 are given below:

Number of Number of Board Number of
. Directorshipsin  Committee shares
Name of the Director  Category other memberships held in
Companies other Companies
. Promoter & 60,27.652
N Satish Kumar Managing Director 2 NIL
Promoter, Whole- 25,34,657
K Radha Krishna Time Director & 2 NIL
CFO
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B Steadhara Reddy | T remoier & Director 2 NIL 21,222,157
Administration
s Promoter & 711,657
BHR Balaji Executive Director 1 NIL
Independent 5,000
. Director & Non-
T Rohini Reddy Executive NIL NIL
Chairperson
N Independent & 7 NIL 20,600
Ashiwini Kumear Non-Executive
Tripathi .
Director
Independent & NIL NIL NIL
Bachala Ashck Non-Executive
Director
Rajkumar Singh Nominee Director NIL NIL NIL
Chouhan* (Bank of India)
G Viswanath™ Nominee Director NIL NIL NIL
(Bank of India)

*Mr Rajkumar Singh Chouhan resigned as Nominee Director on 27" May 2015

**Mr G Viswanath was appointed as Nominee Director w.e.f 27" May 2015.

Note: Number of Directorships in other Companies includes listed, unlisted, public and private

Companies.

B) Meeting During the year

During the Financial Year 2014-15 the Board of Directors met 9 times on the following dates:

09™ April 2014, 30™ May 2014, 18" July 2014, 14™ August 2014, 13" Saptember 2014, 01 October

2014, 14" November 2014, 12" February 2015 and 30" March 2015.

The time gap between any two Board Meetings did not exceed four months.

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30™

September, 2014,

Name of the Director No. of Board Meeiings Whether attended the
attended last AGM
N Satish Kumar 8 No
K Radha Krishna 9 No
B Sreedhara Reddy 7 Yes
BHR Balaji 1 No
Y Anand Swaroop* 3 No
T Rohini Reddy 9 Yes
Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi 1 No
Kishor Shah** - No
Christian A Schmidi*** No
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Rajkumar Singh Chouhan 1 No
Bachala Ashok 6 No
*Mr Y Anand Swaroop resigned w.e.f 14th August 2014

** Mr Kishor Shah resigned w.e.f. 1st October 2014

% Mr Christian A Schmidt resgined w.e.f 14th August 2014.

C) Board's Procedure

Agenda papers along with explanatory statements were circulated to the Directors in advance for each
of these meetings. All relevant information as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement was placed before
the Board from time to time.

D} Independent Directors’ Meeting

As per clause 7 of the schedule IV of the Companies Act (Code for Independent Directors), a separate
meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company (without the attendance of Non-Independent
directors} was held on 30.03.2015, to discuss:

1. Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Beard of Directors as whole;

2. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

All the Independent Directors of the Company were present at the meeting.

As required under clause 49(lIXB)(7) of the listing agreement, the company regulardy familiarises
Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the
industry in which the company operates, business model of the company etc. The details of the

familiarisation program is given at company’s website (www.sol.net.in/ Investor)

2) Audit Committee:
A) Brief Description of Terms of References:

I} The Audit Committes of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreements with the S8tock Exchanges read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

II) The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include a review of,

+ Overview of the Company’s financial raporting process and disclosure of it financial
information to ensure that the financial statements reflect a true and fair position and that
sufficient and credible information is disclosed.

+ Recommending the appointment and removal of extemal auditors, fixation of audit fee
and also approval for payment for any other services.

+ Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences, of the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

+ Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report including quarterly / half yearly
financial information.

+ Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board, focusing on:
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i Any changes in accounting policies and practices;
ii Qualification in draft audit report;
i Significant adjustments arising out of audit;

iv The going concermn concept;
v Compliance with accounting standards:
vi Compliance with stock exchange and legal requiremenis concermning financial
statements;

vii Any related panrty transactions

4+ Reviewing the company’s financial and risk management's palicies.

4+ Disclosure of contingent liabilities.

+ Reviewing with management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal
control systems.

4+ Reviewing the adequacy of intemal audit function, including the audit character, the
structure of the Internal audit department, approval of the audit plan and its execution,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage
and frequency of internal audit.

+ Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up therson.

+ Reviewing the findings of any intemal investigations by the internal auditors into the

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

4+ Looking into the reasons if for substantial defaults in payments to the depositors,
debenture heolders, shareholders {in case of non-payment of declared dividends} and
creditors.

4+ Reviewing compliances as regards the Company's Whistle Blower Policy.

Ill} The previous Annual General Mesting of the Company was held on 30™ September 2014 and
Ms T Rohini Reddy Chairperson of the Audit Committee, attended previous AGM.

B) Composition:

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee comprising of the following three Non-Executive
Independent Directors.

N Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship
1 T Rehini Reddy Chairperson Non-Executive & Independant Director
2 Y Anand Swaroop* Member Non-Executive & Independent Director
3 Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi Member Non-Executive & Independent Director
4 Bachala Ashok** Member Non-Executive & Independent Director

* Mr Y Anand Swaroop resigned from the Committee membership w.e.f 14" August 2014.
**Mr Bachala Ashok was appointed as member of the Committee w.e.f 14" August 2014,

C) No. of Meetings held during the year:

During the year the Audit Committes had 4 Meetings i.e. on 30" May 2014, 14" August 2014, 14"
November 2014 and 12" February 2015.

The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings
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Composition, name of Members and attendance during the year 2014-15:

Number of meetings  Number of meetings attended

held during the year during the year
T Rohini Reddy 4 4
Y Anand Swaroop 4 2
Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi 4 -
Bachala Ashok 4 2

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting.

3).Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Committee comprises of three non-executive independent Directors as on 31 March, 2015

A) Brief Description of Terms of Reference

+ To approve the fixationfrevision of remuneration of Executive Direclors of the Company and whils
approving:

a. to take into account the financial position of the Company, trend in the industry, appointee’s
qualification, experience, past performance, past remuneration etc.

b. to bring out objectivity in determining the remuneration package while striking a balance hetween
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

+ To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appeinted in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and te recommend to the Board their
appointment and /or removal.

4+ To camry out evaluation of every Director’s pefformance.

+ To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive affributes and independence of a
Director, and recommend to the Beard a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employses.

+ To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

+ To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director and Whole-time Director(s) based on
their parformance and defined assessment criteria.

B} Composition of the Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of the following Directors:

S.No Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship
1 T.Rohini Reddy Chairperson Non-Executive & Independent Director
2 Kishor Shah* Member Non-Executive & Independent Director




-
& sar

3 Bachala Ashok** Member Non-Executive & Independent Director
4 Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi** | Member Non-Executive & Independent Director

* Mr Kishor Shah resigned from the Committee membership w.e.f 01 October 2014.
* Mr Bachala Ashok was appointed as member of the Committee w.e.f 14" August 2014,
*** Mr Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi was appointed as member of the Committee w.e.f 01* October 2014.

C) Remuneration Policy

The objectives of the remuneration policy are to motivate Directors to excel in their performance,
recognize their contribution and retain talent in the organization and reward merit.

The remuneration levels are governed by industry pattern, qualifications and experience of the Directors,
responsibilities shouldered and individual performance.

POLICY FOR SELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND DETERMINING DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

1. Scope:

This policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for identifying
perscons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the independence of Directors, in case
of their appointment as independent Directors of the Company.

2. Terms and References:
2.1 “Director™ means a director appointed to the Board of a Company.

2.2 “Nemination and Remuneration Committee means the commitiee constituted in accordance with
the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the Equity Listing
Agreement.

2.3 “Independent Director” means a director referred to in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 459(1)(B) of the Equity Listing Agreement.

3. Policy:
Qualifications and criteria

3.1.1 Tha Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on annual hasis,
appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual
members. The objective is to have a board with diverse background and experience that are
relevant for the Company’s operations.

3.1.2 In evaluating the suitability of individual Board member the NR Committee may take into account
factors, such as:
+ General understanding of the company's business dynamics, global business and social
perspective;
+ Educational and professional background
+ Standing in the profession;




-
& sar

+ Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;
+ Willingness to devote sufficient time and energy in carrying out their duties and responsibilities
effectively.

3.1.3 The proposed appointee shall also fuffill the following requirements:

+ shall possess a Director Identification Number;

+ shall not b disqualified under the companies Act, 2013;

+ shall endeavour to attend all Board Meeting and Wherever he is appointed as a Committee
Member, the Committee Mesting;

+ shall abide by the code of Conduct established by the company for Directors and senior
Management personnel;

+ shall disclose his concem or interest in any company or companies or bodies corporate, firms, or
other association of individuals including his sharsholding at the first meeting of the Board in
every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures already made;

+ 3uch cther requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the companies Act,
2013, Equity listing Agreements and other relevant laws.

3.1.4 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of
having a group that best enables the success of the company’s business.

3.2 Criteria of independence

3.2.1 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at time of
appointment/ re-appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-
assess determinations of independence when any new interast or relationships are disclosed by a
Director.

3.2.2 The criteria of independence shall be in accordance with guidelines as laid down in companies Act,
2013 and Clause 49 of the Equity Listing Agreement.

3.2.3 The independent Director shall abide by the “code for independent Directors “as specified in
Schedule IV to the companies Act, 2013.

3.3 Other directorships/ committee memberships

3.3.1 The Board members are expected to have adequate time and expertise and experience io
contribute to effective Board performance. Accordingly,. members should voluntarily limit their
directorships in other listed public limited companies in such a way that it does not interfere with
their role as director of the company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall take
into account the nature of and the time involved in a director service on other Boards, in
evaluating the suitability of the individual Director and making its recommendations to the Beard.

3.3.2 ADirector shall not serve as director in more than 20 companies of which not more than 10 shall
be public limited companies.

3.3.3 A Director shall not serve as an independent Director in more than 7 listed companies and not
more than 3 listed companies in case he is serving as a whole-time Director in any listed
company.

3.3.4 A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 committees or act as chairman of more than 5
committee across all companies in which he holds directorships.
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For the purpose of considering the limit of the commities, Audit commities and stakeholder’s relationship
committee of all public limited companies, whether listed or not, shall be included and all other
companhies including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies under section 8 of the
companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded.

Remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees:

1. Scope:

1.1 This policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination and Remuneration committee for
racommeanding to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnsl and other
employees of the company.

2. Terms and Reference:

In this policy the following terms shall have the following meanings:
2.1 “Director” means a director appeinted to the Board of the company.
2.2  “key managerial personnel” means
(i) The Chief Executive Office or the managing director or the manager;
(i) The company secretary;
(il  The whole-time diractor;
{ivi  The chief finance Officer; and
{v) Such other office as may be prescribed under the companies Act, 2013
2.3  “Nomination and Remuneration commiliee” means the committee constituted by Board in
accordance with the provisions of section 178 of the companies Act,2013 and clause 49 of the
Equity Listing Agreement.
3. Policy:
3.1 Remuneration to Executive Director and key managerial personnel
3.1.1 The Beard on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration committee shall review
and approve the remuneration payable to the Executive Director of the company within the overall
limit approved by the shareholders.
3.1.2 The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration committee shall also
revisw and approve the remuneration payable to the key managarial personnsl of the company.
3.1.3 The remuneration structure to the Executive Director and key managerial personnel shall include
the following components:
{i) Basic pay
{ii) Perguisites and Allowances
(iii} Stock Options
{iv) Commission (Applicable in case of Executive Directors)
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{v) Retrial benefits
{vi) Annual performance Bonus
3.1.4 The Annual plan and Objectives for Exacutive committee shall be reviewed by the Nomination and
Remuneration committee and Annual perfarmance Bonus will be approved by the committes
based on the achievement against the Annual plan and Objectives.
3.2 Remuneration to Non — Executive Directors

3.2.1 The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, shall review
and approve the remuneration payable to the Non — Executive Directors of the Company within
the overall limits approved by the shareholders.

3.2.2 Non - Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees attending the meetings of the Board and
the Commitiees thereof. The Non- Executive Directors shall also be entitled to profit related
goemmission in addition to the sitting fees.

3.3. Remunsration {o other employess

3.3.1. Employees shall be assigned grades according to their qualifications and work experience,
competencies as well as their roles and responsibilities in the organization. Individual
remuneration shall be determined within the appropiiate grade and shall be based on various
factors such as job profile skill sets, seniority, experience and prevailing remuneration levels for
equivalent jobs.

D. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS PAID DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-15 AND OTHER

DISCLOSURES
Salary per
Name of the Director  Designation annumi Commission
{Rs. in Lakhs)

N. Satish Kumar Managing Director 19.20 NIL

K. Radha Krishna Whole Time Director & CFO 12.00 NIL

B. Sreedhara Reddy | Director Administration 12.00 NIL
BHR Balaji Executive Director 12.00 NIL

E. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

As per section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with clause VIl (1) of the schedule IV and rules
made thereunder, the independent directors of the company had a meeting on 30/03/2015 without
attendance of non-independent directors and members of management. In the meeting the following
issues were taken up:

(a) Review of the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;
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(b) Review of the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of
executive directors and nan-executive directars;

(c) Assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company

management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

The meeting also reviewed and evaluated the performance of non independent directors. The company has
4 {Four) non-independent directors namely:

i.} Mr N Satish Kumar - Managing Director

ii.} Mr K Radha Krishna — Whols Time Director & CFO.
iii.yMr BHR Balaji — Executive Director

iv) Mr B Sreadhara Reddy- Director Administration

The meeting also reviewed and evaluated the performance the Board as whale in terms of the following
aspects:

4+ Preparedness for Board/Committee meetings
4+ Attendance at the Board/Committee meetings

4+ Guidance on cormporate strategy, risk policy, corporate performance and overseeing acquisitions
and disinvestments.

+ Monitoring the effectiveness of the company’s governance practices

4+ Ensuring a transparent board nomination process with the diversity of experience, knowledge,
perspective in the Board.

4+ Ensuring the integrity of the company’s accounting and financial reporting systems, including the
independent audit, and that appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems for
financial and operational control and compliance with the law and relevant standards.

It was noted that the Board Meetings have been conducted with the issuance of proper notice
and circulation of the agenda of the meeting with the relevant notes thereon.

4) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR):

Corporate Social Respensibility required to be disclosed under Section 135 of the Companies Act,
213 read with Companies (Comporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to
the company. Hence, composition of committee is not required.

5) Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

A) Terms of reference:

The Committee focuses primarily on monitoring expeditious redressal of investors / stakeholders
grievances and also function in an efficient manner that all issues / concerns stakeholders are
addressed / resolved promptly.

B) Composition of the Committee:

The Committee consists of 1 Non-Executive and Independent Director and 2 Executive Directors.
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C} No. of meetings held and attended during the year:

During the year the 4 Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings were held i.e. on 4" April,
2014, 18™ July, 2014, 18" October, 2014 and 16" January, 2015. The attendance of the Members at

the meeting was as under:

Name of the Director Position No. of Meetings held | No. of Meetings Attended
Ms T Rehini Reddy Chairperson 4
Mr N Satish Kumar Member
Mr. K Radha Krishna Member 4 4
D) Name and Designation of Compliance Officer:
Ms. G Anupama, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.
E) S8hareholder’s Grlevances:
SL.No. | Nature of Complalnts 2014-2015 2013-2014
Received Answered Received | Answered
1. Non receipt of Shares lodged Nil Nil Mil Nil
for Demat
2. Others Nil Nil Nil Nil

6) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

A) Composition:

The Details of composition of the Committae are given below:

Name of the Director Position Category
Ms T Rohini Reddy Chairperson Independent Non-Executive
Mr. N Satish Kumar Mamber Exacutive
Mr. K Radha Krishna Member Executive

B) Role and Responsibilities of the Committee includes the following:

+ Framing of Risk Management Plan and Policy

+ 4+ + + o+

respect fo risk assessment and risk management processes.

Validating the process of risk management

Monitoring of Risk Management Plan and Policy

Validating the procedure for Risk minimisation

Overseeing implementation of Risk Management Plan and Palicy

Periodically reviewing and evaluating the Risk Management Policy and practices with
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+ Continually obtaining reasonable assurance from management that al known and

emerging risks have been identified and mitigated or managed.

7} General Body Meetings:

Flnanclal vear | Date Time Venue Resolutlons Passed
16" AGM 30.09.2014 | 10.30 AM | Dwaraka 1. Appointment of Mr Bachala Ashok as an
201314 Chambers, Independent Director.
Bandlaguda 2, Appointment of Ms T Rahini Reddy as an
Crc_:ss Roads, Independent Director.
Rajendra Nagar ) . . )
Mandal, 3. Appointment of Mr Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi as
Hyderabad an Independent Director.
500 030 4. Appointment of Mr Kishor Shah as an
Independent Director.
5. Contract to take on lease four wheeler vehicles
(cars) from Whole Time Directors of the
Company
8. Amendment of Artides of Association of the
Company.
15" AGM 30.09.2013 | 10.30 AM | Dwaraka 1. No Special Business in this mesting.
2012-13 Chambers,
Bandlaguda
Cross Roads,
Rajendra Nagar
Mandal,
Hyderabad
500 030
14™ AGM 29.09.2012 | 11.30 AM |Maisamma Garden, | 1. Mr Ashiwini Kumar Tripathi appointed as
2011-12 #4-1-6/2, Director of the Company.
E;I;,kap?;?ﬁ;n dir 2.Issue of 62,50,000 equity shares to promoters
Tem.ple. and others on Preferential basis u’/s 81{1A) and
BandlagudaJagir,| 8l other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Rajendranagar, Companies Act, 1956,
Hyderabad
500 086
Postal Ballot Moeeatings
Financial year | Date Time Venue Resolutions Passed
2013-14 11.06.2013 |04.30 PM |3A, 3™ Floor, 1. Issue of 1,66,64,059 Equity shares to Promoters
Office Block, and Others on Preferential Basis u/s 81(1A) of
Samrat Complex, | the Companies Act, 1958. (68.17.461 voted for
Saifabad, . . .
Hyderabad and 12,92.0 voted alngaln.stfor this resoclution.)
500 004 2. Increase in Borrowing Limits from Rs 279 Crores

to Rs 459 Crores ufs 293(1)(d) and other
applicable provisicns if any of the Companies
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Act, 1956. (68,17 ,461 votad for and 12,920 voted
against for this resolution.)

3. Croation of Charge on Movable and Immovable
properties o the Company, both present and
future in respect of borrowings u/s 293(1)a) and
other applicable provisions if any of the
Companies Act, 1956. (68,17,461 voted for and
12,920 voted against for This resolution.}

2014-15 10.05.2014 |04.30 PM |3A, 3™ Floor, . lssue of 77,15,414 Equity shares to Promoters
Office Block, and Others on Preferential Basis u/s 81{1A) of
Samrat Complex, | the Companies Act, 1956 read with Section

—_

a:gz&:g’éd 62(1) of the Companies At 2013, (2,12,33,621
500 004 voted for and 1400 voted against for this
resolution}
2. Increase in Borrowing Limits from Rs 278 Crores
to Rs 459 Crores u/s 180 and other applicable
provisions if any of the Companies Act, 2013.
This resolution is passed in view of the
applicability of new provisicns of the Companies
Act 2013. Though the shareholders approval
was taken in the postal ballot dated 11.06.2013
as mentioned in above. (2,12,32,971 votad for
and 500 voted against for this resclution}
2014-15 21.08.2014 |4.30 PM |#8-3-B33/173, |1 Disclosure of details of natural person who are
Kamalapuri beneficial owners in case of allotment of
colony, Phase Il, | 27 15 414 Equity sh ferential basls f
Hyderabad 15, quity shares on preferential basis to
500 073 promater group and non promoter group.

(2.2856192 voted for and 510 voted against for
this resolution) (Mr Vivek Surana is the
scrutinizer for this postal ballot.

§) Disclosures:

+ The Company has not entered into a transaction of matenal nature with related parties i.e.,
Diractors, Managemsent, their relatives conflicting with the Company’s interest.

+ Detalls of honcompllance

There has been no non-compliance of any legal requirements nor have been any strictures
imposed on the Company by Stoeck Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter
related to capital markets during the last 3 years.

+ Whistle Blower policy
We have established a mechanism for employees to report concems about unethical behavior,
fraud or violation of code of conduct of the Company. The mechanism provided direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committes for exceptional cases. All employees can also direclly meet
the Audit Committee members of the Company. The Whistle Blower Policy has besn posted on
the website of the Company.
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+ Compliance with non-mandatery requirements of clause 49 of the listing agreement
The Company has complied with the mandatory requirementis relating to Nomination and
remuneration committee and Whistle Blower policy o the extent detailed above and has not
complied with other non-mandatory requirements.

+ Management Discussion and Analysis
A detailed section on ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ (MDA), pursuant to Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement forms part of this Annual Report.

9) Means of Communication:

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results will bz sent to the Stock Exchanges
immediately after the Board approves the same and these results will also be published in
prominent daily newspapers, viz. Businass Standard, Surya and Andhra Prabha. These financial
statements, press releases are also posted on the Company’s website, at www.sol.net.in. As the
financial performance of the Company is well published, individual communication are not sent o
the shareholders.

10) SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES):

SEB| has initiated SCORES for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web
based redress system and online redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The company is
in compliance with the SCORES and redressed the shareholders complaints well within the
stipulated time.
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11} General Shareholder’s Information:

Seventeenth Annual General Meeting
Date and Time : Wednesday the 30™ September 2015 at 10.30 am
Venue : Mrugavani Resorts

# 177H, Aziz Nagar, Moinabad

Hyderabad — 500 075

Financial year to which the AGM relates to is 2014-15
Financial Calendar 2015-16 (Tentative Schedule)

For the Quarter ended 30" June, 2015, the Company has already declared the Unaudited
Financial Results on August 07, 2015.

Adoption of Quarterly results for the Quarter ending

30" September, 2015 : 192" Week of November, 2015
31% December, 2015 : 1%2™ Week of February, 2016
31 March, 2016 - on or before 15" May 2016

Annual General Meeting (Next year) : August / September, 2016

Book Closure Date
24" September 2015 to 30"September 2015 (both days inclusive)

Listing on Stock Exchanges : BSE Ltd

Stock Code

Stock Code / Symbol : BSE: 532669 / SBTL
Demat ISIN number in NSDL & CDSL INE 371B01015

Electronic Connectivity

National Securities Depository Limited
Trade World, A Wing,

4th & 5th Floor,

Kamala Mills Compound, Lower Parel,
Mumbai - 400 013.

Central Depository Services {India) Limited
Regd. Office: 17th Floor,
F J Towers,

Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai - 400 001




-
& sar

12} Stock Market Data

The monthly high / low prices of shares of the Company from April, 2014 to March, 2015 at Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited.

Scrip Code: 532669 Company Name: Southern Online Bio Technologies Limited
For the period April 2014 to March 2015

Date High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)| No. of Shares
April 2014 5.62 4.46 307445
May 2014 8.62 4.33 1109001
June 2014 7.82 5.97 419883
July 2014 6.87 5.75 361810
August 2014 713 6.26 181513
September 2014 9.73 7.50 674684
October 2014 8.00 6.28 235667
November 2014 7.02 5.30 2687317
December 2014 5.87 443 136896
January 2015 8.27 4.50 147700
February 2015 591 4.04 830724
March 2015 54 345 1460966

13) Registrars and Transfer Agents

Aarthi Consultants Pvt. Lid.

1-2-285, Domalguda, Hyderabad- 500 029.
Tel: (040) 27642217/27638111

Fax: (040) 27632184

Email; info@aarthiconsultantg.com

14) Share Transfer System

SEBI has vide its circular dated 27.12.2002, directed that all work relating to share registry, beth
physical and demat should be maintained at a single point. Accordingly, the Share Transfers, both
physical and demat form, are done by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents i.e., M/s. Aarthi
Consultants Private Limited, Domalguda, Hyderabad. The requests received for transfer of shares

in physical form are generally completed within the stipulated time.
{ 61)
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15) Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2015

Category No. of Shar Voting No. of Shares % of Share
Holders{ Strength % | Held Holding
Promoters 7 19.59 11555081 19.59
Companies 178 10.31 6080542 10.31
Flis 4 8.43 4975125 8.43
OCBs and NRIs 75 11.78 §948169] 11.78
Mutual Funds, Banks, 0 0.00 0 0.00
Fls
Individuals 8297 40.68 23995185 40.68
Others 38 9.21 5439186 9.21
Total 8599 100.00 58993283| 100.00

16} Distribution of Share Holdings:

No. of As on 31.03.2015 As on 31.03.2014

Equity No. of % of No. of % of No. of % of No.of | % of
Shares share | Share | Shares| Share share | Share | Shares| Share
Held holders| holders holding| holders| holders holding
1-500 5989 689.65 1488720 2.52 6301 7044 1568225 3.04]
501-1000 1008 11.72 B97216 1.52 1048 M7 926237 1.81
1001-2000 564 6.56 923328 1.57 563 629 917159 1.79
2001-3000 255 2.97| 669008 1.13 269 3.01 700762 1.37]
3001-4000 105 12290 381881 0.65 14| 127 415622 0.81
4001-5000 152 1.77) 734610 1.25 129 144 623404 1.22
5001-10000 221 257 1661338 2.82 217 243 1651186 3.22
10001 and 305 3.55 52237207 88.55 304 3.40 44477283 86.74
above

Total 8599 100.004 58993284 100.00 8845  100.00 512?7874' 100.00'

17) Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity

Particulars No.of shares % of share capital
NSDL 3,70,34,972 62.78
CDSL 1,76,56,824 20.93
Physical 43 01,492 7.29
Total 5,89,93,288 100.00
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18) Plant Locations

Unit=1 : Samsthan Narayanapur (V&M)
Nalgonda Dist., Telangana

Unit - Il Plot No. 45/A, APIIC-SEZ
Atchutapuram (v & M)
Visakhapatnam Dist — 531011
Andhra Pradesh
19) Address for correspondence : G Anupama

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

H No. 8-3-833/173,

Kamalapuri Colony, Phase - |l

Hyderabad — 500 073

Tel: 040492219989, Fax: 040-49221998
Website: www.sol.net.in, email: info@sol.net.in

20) Risk Management:

The company has been addressing varicus risks impacting the company and the policy
of the company on risk management is provided elsewhere in this annual report in Management

Discussion and Analysis.

21) Prevention of Insider Trading:

In accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, the
company has instituted a code of conduct for prohibition of insider trading in the company’s

shares.
22) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing Company Secrefary carries out the Reconciliation of
Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL} and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and
paid-up capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the:
stock exchanges and is placed before the board of directors of the Company. The audit, inter alia,
confirms that the listed and paid up capital of the company is in agreement with the aggregate of
the total number of shares in dematerialized form held with NSDL and CDSL and the total number

of shares in physical form.
23) Corporate Identity Number (CIN):

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the company, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Govemment of India is L72900TG1998PLC0O30463.
{ 63)
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24) CEO / CFO Certification:

As required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the CEO / CFO Certification is provided in the
Annual Report.

25) Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance:

As part of the green initiative process, the company has taken an initiative of sending documents
like notice calling Annual General meeting, Corporate Governance Report, Direcitors Report, audited
Financial Statements, Auditors Report, Dividend intimations etc., hy email. Physical copies are sent
only to those shareholders whose email addresses are not registered with the company and for the
bounced-mail cases. Shareholders are requested to register their email id with Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent / concerned depository to enable the company to send the documents in electronic
form ar infarm the company in case they wish to receive the above documants in paper moda.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad N Satish Kumar K Radha Krishna
Date : 07.08.2015 Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFO
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

We, N Satish Kumar, Managing Director and K Radha Krishna, Chief Financial Officer respansible for
the finance function certify that;

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31"
March, 2015 and to the best of our Knowledge and belief:

i) These Statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading.

i} These Statements together present a true and fair view of the companiy sfa fairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) T the best of OIE" Knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31" March,2015 are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s code of conduct.

c} We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal contrels for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to
financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of
which we are aware, have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committes and steps have
bean taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d) i} There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the
year under reference.

i) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of
the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control
system gver financial reporting.

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 07.08.2015

Sdf- 8d/-
N Satish Kumar K Radha Krishna
Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFO
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members of Southern Online Bio Technologies Lid.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Southern Online Bio
Technologies Lid., for the year ended 318t March, 2015 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Govemance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Govemance as stipulated in
the above mentioned Listing Agreament.

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended 313! March, 2015,
no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per
the racords maintained by the Shareholders Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For P MURALI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:0072575S

Sd/-

A Krishna Rao

{Partner)

Membership No. 020085

Place : Hyderabad
Date :27.05.2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Southem Online Bio Technologies Lid.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Southern Qnline Bio
Technologies Ltd. (“the Company™), and its subsidiary {the holding company and its subsidiary together refemed
to as ‘the Group”} which comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter
referred to as ‘Consolidated Financial Staternents’)

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section (134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) with respect to the preparation of these consclidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, consclidated financial performance
preparation and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective board of directors of the companies
included in the group are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial confrols, that are operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
consolidated financial statements by the directors of holding company, as afaoresaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there
under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10} of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessmaent of the risks of material misstatament of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements, that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the holding Company has in place an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the holding Company's Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements, We helieve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED { 67)
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
consolidated state of affairs of the group as at 31% March 2015, their consolidated loss and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 {the Order”) issued by the Central
Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on the comment in the
auditor's report of the holding company and subsidiaries incorporated in India to whom the order applies.
We give in the Annexure a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order {o the
extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our knowledge
and belief ware necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

b} In cur opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained

for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the Directors of helding company as on March 31,
2015, and taken on racord by the Board of Diractors of the holding company and report of the auditor who
are appointed under section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiaries companies incorporated in India, none of
the directors of group companies incomorated in India are disqualifisd as on March 31, 2015, from beaing
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companiss (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transfemed to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the holding Company and Its subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For P Murali & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Ragistration No: 00725735
Sd/-

A Krishna Rac

Partner

M.No. 020085

Place : Hyderabad

Date :27.05.2015

(68) CONSOLIDATED
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH 2015

CONSOLIDATED

Nota As at As at
Partlculars No 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rupees) (Rupees)
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 1 58,99,32,880 51,27,78,740
{b) Reserves and Surplus 2 {51,45,33,345) (39,70,02,005)
(c) Minority Interest 1,630 1,030
{2} Share application money pending for allotment 3 30 1.71,54 170
{3} Non-Current Llahilitles
{a) Long-tetm bormowings 4 148,13,44,741 129,32,13,555
(b) Deferred tax liablities (Net) 5 {16,85,97 988) 3,59,59,554
(c) Cther Long term liabilities 6 5,80,00,000 5,80 00,000
{4} Current Liabilities
(a) Shori-term bommowings 7 36,18,42,584 14,27,59,867
(b) Trade payables 8 64,12,55,366 43,7027 487
(c) Short-term provisions 9 1.36,55,175 1,22.19,179
Total 246,29,00,472 217,21 11,578

Il. Assets
{1) Non-current assets
{a) Fixad assats

() Tangible assets 10 & 11 111,60,85,265 122 96 24,923

{ii} In Tangible assets 10 &1 - 2,75,46,114

{iil) CWIP 10& 11 3,03,23,454 49.,82,182
{b) Long term loans and advances 12 - 1,18,84,852
{c) Cther non-current assets 13 9,92,54,006 4,84 94,866
{2) Current assets
(a) Inventaries 14 31,49,60,085 34,85,62,240
(b} Trade receivables 15 58,23,08,734 35,91,63,719
(¢) Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,62,19,519 6,38,80,028
(d) Short-term loans and advances 17 3047 41,409 7,78,72,654

Total 246,29,00,472 217,21,11,578

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 27

The accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial

Statements

AS PER OUR REPCRT OF EVEN DATE
For P.Murali & Co.,

For Southem Online Bio Technologies Lid,

Chartered Accountants s/

Firm Regn. Ne: 0072575 N. Satish Kumar K. Radha Krishna

Sdf- Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFO
A.Krishna Rao

Partrer Sdi-

M.No.020085 GAnupama

Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary

Date: 27.05.2015.
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GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2015

For the year

For the year

Note ended aended
Particulars No 31.03.2015 31.03.20M4
(Rupees) (Rupees)
I. Revenue from operations 18 246,95 02,160 2014012 108
Il. Other Income 19 41,62,245 11,02,082
HL. Total Revenue (| +1I) 247,36,65,105 201,51,14,190
IV, Expenges:
Cast of materials consumed 20 80,28,57,825 87,00,37,993
Purchass of Stock-in-Trade 20 139.60,63,575 91,94.27,173
Changes in inventories of finished goads, work-in-progress 21 (2,10,99,586) (5.38,02,201)
Employee benefit expense 22 2,62.80,411 2,71.88.858
Other operating expenses 23 19,66,91,348 17,32.41, 116
Administrative Expenses 24 3,61,81,833 3,14,68,973
Finance costs 25 19,71 ,43,890 18,31,56,055
Depreciation and amortization expense 10 &11 11,96,00,048 7.60,73,790
Other expenses 26 4,24,67,301 4,08,87,905
Total Expenses 279,51,06,446 2286,77,09,662
V. Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
(H-1vy (32,15,21,341) (25,26,75,472)
V1. Exceptional tems - -
VIl. Profit before extraordinary items and tax {V - V1) (32,15,21.,341) (25.,26,75,472)
VIII. Extraordinary ltems
{1} Losses due to Cydone HudHud 19,14,29,244 -
(2} Insuranca claimed for Cyclone lass {19,14,29,244) -
LX. Profit befors tax (V11 - VIII) (32,15,21,341) (25,26,75,472)
X Tax expense:
{1} Current tax - -
{2) Deferred tax (20.45,57,542) (8,19,80,557})
XI. Profit{Loss) from the period from continuing operations { IX
- X) (11,69,83,799) (17,06,94,915)
Xll. Profit/{Loss) from discontinuing oparations - -
Xl Tax expense of discounting operations - -
XIV. Profit/{Loss} from Discontinuing operations {XII - XIII) - - -
XV. Profit/(Loss) for the period (X1 + XIV) - {11,69,63.799) (17,06,94 915)
X¥1. Eaming per equity share:
(1) Basic (1.98) (4.93}
{2) Dlluted
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 27

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
For P Murali & Co.,

For Southem Online Bio Technologies Lid,

Acco Sdf- Sd/-

Eh ar‘t;red N Lg;?;;s N. Satish Kumar K. Radha Krishna

m regn. [o: Managing Director Whals Time Director & GFQ
Sdr-
A_Krishna Rao Sd/-

GAnupama

Parther S a -
M.No.020085 ompany Secretary

Place : Hyderahad
Date: 27.052015.

CONSOLIDATED
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NOTENOQ. 1 : SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
§.No. Particulars No. of Amount No. of Amount
Shares In Rs. shares In Rs.
A Share Capital { For each class of capital )

{a) Authorized 7,50,00,000 | 75,00,00,000 | 7,50,00,000 | 75,00,00,000
(b} Issued 5,89,03,288 | 58,99,32,880 | 512,77,874 | 51,27,78,740
{c) Subscribed & Fully Paid Up 580,903,288 | 586932880 | 512,77,874 | 51,27.73.740
{d} Subscribed & not fully paid up
(o) Par value per share Rs. 10

Total Equity Share capital 58,99,32,880 51,27,78,740

A Reconclliation of the number of shares
outstanding at the beglnning and at the
ond of the reporting period:

Equity Shares of Rs.10Each, Fully paid
up;
At the Beginning
lssued during the year - Cash lssue
lesued during the year - ESOP
lssued during the year - Pref Issue
Forfeited / Bought Back during the
Year
At the and

Details of Shareholder holding more than
§% shares of the company:

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each Held By

{a) Share Holder - N. SatishKumar No. Of
Shares (C.Y ) 60,27,652, No. Of Shares (
P.Y)52,71,292.

{b } Share Holder - Advait BY No. Of
Shares (C.Y ) 43,23,267 , No. Of Shares (
P-Y) NIL.

{c) Share Holder -Al sried Company for
Trade Limited - No. OFf Shares (C.Y)
34,086,769 ,No. Of Shares { P.Y) 34,06,769.
{d) Share Holder -The Indiaman Fund
Mauritius Limited - No. Of Shares (PY)
26,64,325,

Number of Sharas

Number of Shares

5.12.?7.874_ 3,46,13,815

77 A 5,414_ 1 ,66,84.059-

5,89,93,28; 51 2,77,874-
% of Share Holding

10.22 10.28

7.33 -

5.77 6.64

- 5.20

CONSOLIDATED
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NOTE NO. 2 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

S.No. Particulars (Rupees) (Rupaes)
| RESERVES AND SURPLUS

a) Securities Premium Reserve
As at the commencement of the year 25,31,87,500 25,31,87,500
Add: Additions during the year . .
Less: Utilized during the year R R
25,31,87,500 25,31,87,500

b} Surplus ;

iy Opening Balance - Profit and Loss Account (68,68,50,2582) (51,61,55,367)

Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss Account {11,69,63,79%) (17,06,84 815)
Less: Transfer To General Reserve - -
Less: Assats Written off (5,67,541} -
Less: Bonus shares - -
Less: Transfer to/from rasarves. - -
(80,43,81,622) (68,68,50,282)
¢) Share warrants forfeited premium :

As at the commencement of the year 3,31,63,000 3,31,63,000
Add: Additions during the year _ _
Less: Utilized during the year _ _
3,31,63,000 3,31,63,000

A Reserve specifically represented by eamarked
I investments - -
i Negative balance of reserves and surplus account - -
Add: VAT Subsidy Received H o7 34,917,777
Total Resarves and Sumplus {51,45,33,345) (39,70,02,005)

NOTE NO. 3 : SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING FOR ALLOTMENT

5.No.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

(Rupees) {Rupees)
| Share Application Money 7,71.54,170 16,09,40,593
Add : Received during the year - 8,26,54,167
TOTAL SHARE APPLICATION MONEY 7,.71.,54,170 24,37,94,760
Less : Share application money equity shares allotted 7,71,54,140 16,66,40,590
Balance share application money 30 7,71,54,170

CONSOLIDATED
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NOTE NO. 4 : LONG TERM BORROWINGS

8.No.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

{Rupees) {Rupees)
I Long Term borrowings

a) Secured Term loans from Banks:

Bank of India, Banjara Hills, - Loan for Flats 19,74,371 34,47,761
{ Secured by Hypothecation of the Flats of the company )

Punjab National bank — Vehicle Loan. 11,12,773
{ Hypothecation of Vehicle of the company )

HDFC Bank of India - Vehicle Loan. 7,286,671
{ Hypothecation of Vehicle of the company )

ICICI Bank - Vehicle Loan. 11,54,080 9,63,610
{ Hypothecation of Vehicle of the company )
TERM LOANS - (BOILSBH,UCC & PNE ) 145,61,24,532 128,33,50,981
{ Secured by total Plant & Machinery of the company )
b} Unsecured Loans from Directors /Others:
Unsecured Lcan 2,20,91,758 36,111,759

Total long term borrowings 148,13,44,741 129,32,13,555

NOTE NO. 5 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY ( NET )

&.No.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015
(Rupees}

As at 31.03.2014
{Rupees)

Opening Deferred tax Liability
Add: Deferred Tax Liability for the year

3,59,59,554
(20,45,57,542)

11,78,40,111
(8.19,80,557)

Deferred Tax Liability/ { Asset ) — Net

(16,85,97,988)

3,59,58,554

NOTE NO. 6 : OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITES

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

8. Ne. Particulars {Rupees) (Rupees)
a) Trade Payables & Others
- Other Long term Liabilities 5,80,00,000 5,80,00,000
Total other long term liabilities 5,80,00,000 5,80,00,000

CONSOLIDATED




-
& seT

NOTE NQ. 7 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS.

S. No.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

{Rupees} {Rupees)
! Short tem borrowings
a) Loans repayable on demand:
From banks
Secured 36,18,42,594 14,27 59,867
Total short term borrowings 36,18,42,594 14,27,59,867

NOTE NO. 8 : TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

&. No. Particulars {(Rupees) (Rupees)
| a) Trade Payables 84,12,55,355 43,70,27 487
Tolal Trade Payables 64,12,55,355 43,70,27,487

NOTE NO. 9 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

5. No. Particulars (Rupees) (Rupess)
| a) Provisions for employae benefits
PF Payable 3,89,287 4,098,733
Salaries Payable 39,98,220 37.44,300
b) Others

Statutory Liahilities 31,04,849 39,768,461
Provisian for Expenses 61,62,819 40,58 685

Total short term provisions 1,36,55,175 12219179

CONSOLIDATED
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NOTE NO.12 : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

8. No. Particulars (Rupees} (Rupees)
| Long - term loang and advances:
a) Security Deposit - 1,18,84,852
Total Long tem loans & advances( het } - 1,18,84,852
NOTE NO.13 : OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS

Ag at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

8. No. Particulars (Rupees) (Rupsees)
| Long term Trade receivable
HUnsecured consldered good 5,81,16,020 4,84,94,866
iNinsurancs claim on Fixad Assets 4.,01,37,986 -
Total non - current assets{ net) 9 92, 54 006 4,84 84 B66

NOTE NO. 14 INVENTORIES

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

5. No. Particulars (Rupees) (Rupees)
I a) Raw materals

Palm Stearin 98,70,042 22,814,425
Mutton Tallow 39,57,395 121,35,914
Rice Bran Ol 7.683,74,103 23,863,540
Used Caooking Qil 2,50,93,810 3,04 ,44,526
Seeds. 1,57,363 1,57,363
Faity Acid Oil 46,34,611 3,26,09,934
Chemicals & Consumables 2,03,60,046 1,06,25,841
Sub Total 14,0447 370 11,11,51,543

b)Work - in — progress
i) Bio Diesel - 6,45,645
Sub Total - 6,45.645

¢) Finlshed goods
Blo Dlesel 10,08,73,679 5,62,02,337
Glycerin 5,29,92 850 6,22,60,110
Rice Bran O 57,14,856 7.90.,89,725
Sludge and Fatty Acid 20,896,469 53,34,146
Sub Total 16,16,77,854 20,28,86,318
d) Stores and spares 1,28,34.861 3,38,78,734
Total nventories 31,49,60,085 34,85,82,240
NOTE NG. 15 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

5. No.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

[Rupaas) {Rupaas)
1 Unsecured, Considered Good 558,23,06,734 35.91.63,719
Total Trade Receivables{net} 58.23,06,734 35,91.83,718
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NOTE NO. 16 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES
. As at 31.03.2015 | As at31.03.2014
S. No. Particulars (Rupees) (Rupees)
| Cash and cash equivalents :
a} Balances with banks : 1,37,10,616 6,29,35,528
b} Cash on hand 25,08,903 10.44,500
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,62,19,519 6,39,80,028
NOTE NO. 17 : SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
. As at 31.03.2015 | As at 31.03.2014
8. No. Particulars {Rupees) (Rupees)
| Short - Term Loans and Advances:
a) Security Deposit
LC Margin & Other Deposit 4,88,52,722 3,85,44,430
b} Other loans And advances
Secured - Raw Material etc.. 23,23,87,300 1,46,32,384
Secured - Other Advances 2,35,01,387 2,46,95,840
Total short term loans & advances 30,47,41,409 7,78,72.654
NOTE NC. 18 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
For the year ended
8. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rupaes) (Rupees)}
{i Revanua from operations
(a) Sale of Products (Domestic) 160,11,85,045 95,07,76,204
{b) Export Sale of Products 27,82,14,018 33,95,55,941
{c} Export Sale { Exports Out Side India Stock in Trade) 48,10,71,480 67,00,17,508
{d} Sale of Services 5,19,97,143 4,27.95,073
(e} Other Operating Revenue 5,96,78,125 1,43,00,000
Less: Exclse Dutles& Customs dutles 26,43,651 34,32,618
Tetal Revenue from Operations 246,95,02,160 201,40,12,108
NOTE NO. 19 : OTHER INCOME
For the year ended
S. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rupass) (Rupoas)
| {a)Other non-operating income(net of expenses directly
attributed to such income) 27,66,102 18,95,195
(b} Net gainfloss on farelgh currency translation and
transaction (other than considered as finance cost) 13,96,843 {7,93,113)
Total Other Income 41,62,945 11,02,082
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NOTENO. 20 : COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED & PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

For the year ended

S. Ne. Particulars 3(‘:_\;3?&:;)5 -”(’:‘-:i-:g)“
| Material
Palm Stearin 7,29,64,620 10,53,06,535
Mutton Tallow 21,83,67,306 24,12,13,515
Rice Bran Ol 112,51,09,265 55,36,38,465
Used Cooking Qil. 66,19,70,427 78,22,24 484
Palm Sludge Oil - 74,78,574
REB Acid oil. - 17,01,343
Fatty Acid Oil. 2,33,74,123 2,57,36,286
Chemicals & Consumables 58,018,361 5,97,45,964
Sub Total 215,98,04,102 177,70,45,166
IROAF Sub contract Expenses 3,91,17,298 1,24,20,000
Total Cost Of Materlal Consumad 219,89,21,400 178,94,65,166

NOTE NO. 21: CHANGE IN INVENTORIES & WIP.

For the year ended

S.Ne. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rupess) (Rupees)
I Finished Goods
Finished goods at the beginning of the year 20,28,86,318 14,70,66,986
Less : Finished goods at the end of the vear 16,16,77,854 20,28,86,318
Sub Total (A) 4,12,08,464 {5.58,19,332)
Work in Progress
Work in progress at the beginning of the year 6,45,645 26,62,776
Less: Worlk in progress at the ending of the year . 6,45,645
Less : Loss due to Cyslone HudHud 6,29,53,695 -
SubTotal B) | (6.23,0,050) 20,7131
(Increase) f Decrease in Inventories (A+B) (2,10,99,686) (5,38,02,201)
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NOTE NO. 22 . EMLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (AGGREGATE EXPENDITURE)

For the year ended

$. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rupees) (Rupees}

I (a) Salaries & Wages 1,84,49,452 1,88,91,643

(b} Confribution to Provident & Other Funds 30,00,238 31,01,556

(c) Staff Welfare Expenses 48,30,721 51,095,650

Total Employee Benefit Expenses 2,62,80,411 2,71,88,858

NOTE NO. 23 : OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

For the year ended

S. Ne. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rupess) {Rupees)
I (a) Congumption of Chemicals , Stores & Spares 1,75,33,573 45,93,281
{b) Power & Fuel 6,50,37 864 7,00,38,338
(c) Rent 61,540 83,990
(d) Repairs to Machinery 1,18,14,890 £9,37,196
{e) Insurance 11,61,607 20,52 566
(f) Rates & Taxes { Excluding Income Tax } 73,36,825 13,68,933
Bandwidth 3,30,95,000 2,47,38,374
Cther Mfg Expenses 93,31,458 1,07,21,983
Factory Wages 2,82,86,550 2,20,45,161
Shipping Charges 2,18,31,941 3,15,36,294
(g} Payment to Auditors:
{i) As Auditor 75,000 65,000
{ii} For Taxation Matters 25,000 20,000
{iii) For Company Law Matters 25,000 20,000
{iv) For Management Services 25,000 20,000
Total Other Expenses 19,56,91,348 17,32,41,116
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NOTE NQ. 24 : ADMINSTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended

5. No. Particulars 31.032015 31.03.2014
{Rupess) {Rupseas}

| {a) Telephone, Postage and Others 20,53.814 27,068,723
(b) Business Promction Expenses - 10,000

{c) Travelling & Conveyance 1,66,13,094 1,05,90,607

{d) Office Maintenance 30,568,313 22,777,252

(e) Printihg & Statlonery Expenses 4,28,638 4,28,452

{fy Security Charges 9,06,378 8,32,252

{g) Rent Rates & Taxes (excluding Income Tax) 28,77,290 32,098,796

{h} Managerial Remuneration 43,20,000 55,20,000

(i) Consultancy Chamges 37,20,775 465,88,197

(J) Ben Expenses 3,086,498 4,09,761

(k) Director’s Sitling Fee / Board Meeling Expenses 18,16,833 7,959,933

Total Administrative Expenses 3,61,81,633 3,14,68,973

NOTE NOQ. 25 ; FINANCE COST

For the year ended

8. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rupees) (Rupses)

| (a) Interest Expenses : -

- Interest on Cash Credit 3,73,41.816 2,76,69,323

- Interest on Car Loans / Term Loans 13,81,50,955 11,23,84,832

- Loan processing Charges & Bank Charges 2,16,51,119 3,09,90,681

- CDR - Facilitation Chamges - 1,21,11,239

Total Finance Cost 19,71,43,890 18,31,56,055

NOTE NO. 26 : OTHER EXPENSES

For the year ended

5. No. Partlculars 31.03.2013 31.03.2014
{Rupees) {Rupees}

| Loss on Sale Of Vehicles 21,87,587 3,30,156
Advertisamants 4,600 51,202

Collection Expenses 85,000 2,24,621
Commigsion & Discounts 28,53,598 2,28,16,727

Freight Charges - Qutward & Insurance 3,37,59,703 1,26,20,715

Business Promotion Expenses 35,77, 413 49 54,484

Total Other expenses 4,24,67,301 4,09,97,905
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the accounts for the year ended
31* March 2015.

1. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
The Financial statements of Subsidiaries used in the consolidated are drawn up to the sama reporting date as that of
the parent company i..e year ended 31% March 2015

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in
India and under the historical cost convention on accrual basis, axception for certain tangible assets which are being
carried at revalued amounts. Pursuant to Sectian 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of e Companies
(Accounts) Rules. 2014, fill the standards of accounting or any addendum thersto are prescribed by Central
Gaovermment in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporling Authority, the existing
Accounting Standards nofified under the Companies Act 1956, Shall Contihue to apply. Consequently these financial
statements have bean preparad o comply in all material aspacts with the accounting standards nofified under section
211 (3C) of Companies Act, 1956 [Companies (Accounting Standards)Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant
pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

All the assets and liabilties have been classifiad as current and non current as par the company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the
time between the acquisition of assefs for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has asceriained its operaling cycle to be 12 months for the purpose of current — non current classification of
assels and liabilities.

2. Principles of Consolidation

The financial statement of parent company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis by
adding together the book values of like items of assels, liahilities, income and expenses, after eliminaling intra group
balances, intra group transactions and the unrealized profits.

The financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries have been cansolidated using uniform accounting
policies. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures of required for
preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements as laid down under the Accounting standard-21
‘Consolidated Financial statements.’

The Company has only one single subsidiary in the name of Southern Bicfe Biofuels Private Limited.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent liabiities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of income and
expenses during the period.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprisas cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalent are short term balances (with an
ofiginal maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition). Highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby Profit tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
non-cash nature and any deferrals ar accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

CONSOLIDATED {81)
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4. Tangible and Intangible Assets
i)} Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. The cost of fixed assets includes taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from fax
authorities), duties, freight and other directly attributable cosis related to the acquisition or construction of the
respective assets. Direct costs are capitalized until fixed assets are ready for use.

I} Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recegnition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Profit or
Loss on dispasal of intangible assets Is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Product development expanditura is written off over a period of 10 years. Products which are conciderad as
redundant due 1o Technological advancement would be written off immediately.

ili} Capital Work-in-Prograss
Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are carmied at
cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.
5. Depreciation and Amortization
i) Effective 01 April 2014, Company depreciates the Fixed assets over the useful life in the manner prescribed
in Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 as against the earlier praciice of depredaling at the rates
prescribed in Schedule XV of the Companies Act 1856,

ii}y Deprediation for addifions to Fixed assets of the Company is provided as per Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013 on pro rata basis.

€. Revenue recognition

i) Income from Software development is accounted for on the basis of software developed and billed to clients
on acceptance and/or the basis of man days/ man hours as per the termsa of contract.

i} Revenue from professional sarvices consists of primanily of revenue sarned from services performed on a
time and material basis. The related revenue is recognized as and when the services are performed.

iy Revenue from Software development services includes revenue from time and materizls and fixed price
contracts recognized as related services are performed.

iv} Revenue on fixed price contracts is recognized in accordance with percentage of completion and methed of
account.

v} Revenue is nct recognized on the grounds of prudence, until realized in respect of liquidated damages,
delayed payments as recovery of the amounts are not certain.

7. Foralgn Exchange Transactlons
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

a) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year and are restated at year end rates.
b} Non Monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.
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c) In respect of foreign operations, which are non integral operations, all assets and liabilities, other monetary and
non-monetary, are translated at closing rate, which all income and expenses are translated at average rate for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.

8. Investments

Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. Investments that are readily realizable and
intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of acquisifion are classified as current investments. All
other Investments are dlassified as long term investment.

Long term investments are stated at cost and provision for diminution is made if the decline in value is other than
temporary in nature. Current investments are sated at lower of cost and fair value determined on the basis of each
category of investments.

Cost of overseas investment comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the investment {ranslated
at the exchange rate prevalent at the date if investment.

8. Related party Disclosures
Tha Company fumishes the details of Related party Disclosures as given in Para 23 and 26 as required by AS-18.

10. Eamings per Shara
The basic and Diluted Eamings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by
weighted average numbet of equity shares outstanding during the year.

11. Taxes on Income
To provide Cumrent tax as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period. Measured using the
applicable tax rates and tax laws.

To provide deferred tax on timing differences between taxable income and accounting income subject to
consideration of prudenca, measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have bean anacted or asubstantively
enacted by the balance sheet date. Not to recognize Deferred tax assets on unabscrbed depreciation and carry
forward of losses unless there is virual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realize
such assets.

12. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company creates the provisions where there is a present obligation as a result of past avent that probably
requires an cutflow of resources and a reliable estimated can be made for the amount of the obligation. A disclasure
for contingant liability will be made when there is a possible cbligation or present abligation that may, but probably, will
not required the outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or present obligation in respect of which
the likelihood of oufflow of resources is remote, no provisions or disclosures will be made.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. Share Capital:
The Equity Share Capital of the company as on 31 *March, 2015 is 5,89,93,288 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each Tully paid up.

During the year 2014-15 the Company has allotted 77,15,414 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each and the same is
included in the share capital as on 31 March 2015,

28. Secured Loans
a} The Company's ISP Division has Over Draft facility to the tune of Rs 35 Lakhs with Bank of India which is
secured against book debts of the ISF Division,

b} The Company’s Bio Diesel Division has Working Capital facility to the tune of Rs 4546 Lakhs which is
sacured against Stocks and book debts.
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¢) Dwring the financial year Bank of India has sanctioned an amount of Rs 300 Lakhs as Adhoc limit for
carrying out restoration work at Visakhapatnam Bio diesel Plant against sanction of restructure proposal
{or) receipt of insurance claim due to Hudhud Cyglone.

29. Segment Reporting

The activities of the Company can be broadly classified into Internet Service Pravider (ISP}, Manufacturing of
Bio Diesel, Used Cooking Cil trading and Contract and construction of Bio diesel plant for IROAF at Tondiarpet, Chennal.

The ISP division provides Internet Bandwidth to the Corporate Clients, Educational Institutions, Cyber Cafes,
& Individual etc.,

The Bio Diesel division manufactures the Bio Diesel.

Income and direct expenses relation to segments are categorized based on items that are individually
identifiable to that segment, while the remainder of cost is apportioned on appropriaie basis. Certain
expenses which are not specifically allocable to individual segments as the relevant services are used
interchangeably. The company therefore believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures
relating to such expenses. Accordingly, they are separately disclosed as unallowable and directly charged
against total income.

In other segment shown in the table given below includes:-
a) The income and expenditure relating to 30 TPD capacity bio diesel unit at Tondiarpet, Chennai.
b) The income and expenditure relating to Cross country trading of Used Cooking Qil.

The assets of the company are used interchangeably between segments, and the management believes that
it is not practical to provide segment disclosure rslating to total assets and liabilities.
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Business Segments:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Statement of ISP Bio Diesel Others Total

Profit and loss

for the year
ended 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

31.03.2015
Revenues 519.97 | 427.95 9134.83 9369.00 | 15040.22 | 10343.18 | 2469502 | 20140.12

Identifiable 390.03 | 28229 | 684623 | 10579.91 [ 14351.81 | 6817926 | 2158806 | 17041.46
Operatlihg
Expenses

Allocated 12116 | 12219 4095.84 | 3342.51 175.37 34017 439237 3804 87
Expenses
Segmental 8.79 2347 | (1807 .23) | (4553.42) 51304 | 3823.74 | (128540) {706.21)
Operating
Income
Unallocated - - - - - - - -
Expenses
Profit for the 8.79 2347 | (1807.23) | (4553.42) 513.04 | 3823.74 | (1285.40) (706.21)
year before
Interest
Interest 460 14 .58 1965.61 1810.70 1.23 6.27 1971.44 1831.56
Expenses
Other Income - 0.26 27.66 (30.31) 13.97 41.07 41.63 11.02

Net profit before 418 914 | (374518) | (6394.44) 52578 | 3858.54 | (3215.21) | {2526.75)
taxes and prior
period items
Provision for - {(1.51) | {2045.58) (818.29) - - | (2045.58) (819.81)
taxation
Prior period - - - - - - - -
Items
Net profit after 4.18 10.65 | {1698.61) | (5576.15) 52578 | 3858.54 | (1162.64) | (1706.95)
taxes and
hefore
exceptional
items
Exceptlonal - - - - - - - -
items
Profit after tax 4.18 1065 | {169961} | (5576.15) 525.78 | 3858.54 | (1169.64) | (1706.95)
and exceptional
ltems

Geographical Segments {Rs. in lakhs)
Revenues As at 31.03 2015 As at 31.03. 2014
India 17,0217 10,044 39
Oulside India 7,592.85 10,09573
Total 24,695.02 20,140.12

30. Deferred Tax Asset/ Liabllity:

The cumrent charge for income tax is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to the
company. Deferred tax asset and liahility is recognized for future consequences atiributable to the timing
differences that result between the profit offered for income tax and the profit as per the Financial Statements.
Deferred Tax asset and llabliity are measured as per the tax ratesflaws that have been ehacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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During the current year, the company recognized the defermed fax asset for an amount of Rs 2045.57 lakhs on
business loss of the current financial year 2014-15. Such DTA is recognized only 1o the extent that there is virtual
perrinty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such

DTA can be realized.

The certalnty for earning future taxable Income Is evidence with that the company Is golng to utllize the full capaclty

of plant for generation of Bio Diesel situated at Vizag.

(Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2014
Deferred Tax Liabllity
a) Opening Balance (2,59,50,554) (11,79.40,111)
Less: Deferred tax asset 20,4557 542 8,19,80,557
Total DTA/DTL 16,85,97,988 {3,59,59,554)
31, Forelgn Exchange Eamings
{Rupees}
Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Expart of Goods 75,92 85,498 1,00,95,73 449
Total 75,92,85,498 1,00,95,73,449
32 Foreign Exchange Outflow
{Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
For Purchases 83,01,23,691 80,18 55,0095
Total £3,01,23,691 80,18,55,095

33. Directors’ Remuneration

The Managerial remuneration paid or provided in accordance with Schedule V of the Companies Act,

2013 to the Directors is as follows:

(Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Salary & Allowances (Whole Time Directors) 55,20,000 55,20,000

34. Ramuneration to Auditors

{Rupeas)
Particulars As at 31.03.2015 Ag at 31.03.2014
Audit Fees 150,000 1,26,000
Total 1,50,000 1,25,000
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35. Detalls of Quantitative Information

The Company Is engaged In the Intemet Service Provider (ISP) services and Blodlesel Unit construction for
Indlan Raliways (IRQAF}. The ISP services and IROAF Construction are not capable of being exprassed In any
generic unit and hence it is not possible 1o give the quantitative details. In respect of Bio Dlesel Divislon and
UCO Marchant trading the quanfitative information is as follows:

201415 201314
Qty Value Gty Value
$l. No. | Quantliatlve Informatlon (KgsiLis) {Rs} {KgsiLts) (Rs)

A Licensed Capacity NA NA

B Installed Capacity 286 TPD 286 TPD

c Finished Goods
Biodiesel (in Kgs)
Opening Stock 8,75,688 5,34,07,072 13,74,113 | 6,23,60,080
Production During the Year 1,16,90,850 76,31,58,595 94,20,680 | 43,14,60,5658
Sales During the year 1,04,73,138 62,44,00,023 97,76,551 | 43,32,06,786
Sludge & Fatty 1,23,292 29,59,008 - -
Hudhud Loss 4,385,556 3,16,48,032 - -
Closing Stock of Bie Diesel in KGs 15,30,552 10,08,73,679 10,18,242 | 5:34,07,072
Glycering
Opening Stock 11,85,564 6,52,06,020 11,835,164 | 53727547
Production During the Year 13,37,359 4,90,26,990 760,284 | 3,24.09471
Sales During the year 5,58,690 80,94 289 4,27 580 | 1.38,35,928
Consumption for Rice Bran Oil 292 402 51,43.5M 282,304 1,26,37,115
Hudhud Loss 6,11,974 3,05,70,048 - -
Closing Stock of Glycerine 10-59:857 5,20,92 850 11,85,5684 | 652,086,020
Rice Bran Oil Processed
QOpening Stock 14:46:995 7.96,84,725 51,077 23,566,575
Processed During the Year 16,29,797 9,10.75,285 2585777 | 12,41,20,118
Sales Durlng the year 79,05,932 15,99,79,689 11,899,859 | 584,567,595
Hudhud Loss 18,611 728873 - -
Sludge & Fatty 50,198 12,04,752 - -
Closing Stock of Rise Bran Cil 1,02,051 57,14 858 1446995 | 79584725
Biodiesel Residue
Cpening Stock - - 62,234 26,10,716
Production During the Year - - - -
Sales During the year - - - -
Consumption for Bio-Diesel - - 62,234 26,10,716
Closing Stock of Bic-Diesel
Residue - - - -
Sludge & Fatty Acid il
Opening Stock 245111 53,34,146 37773 8,67,144
Production During the Year 7,24.319 1,32,99,353 6,56,341 1,30,44,183
Sales During the year 8,76,206 1,51,99,148 4,51 560 82,23,119
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Consumption for Bio-diesel
Closing Stock of Sludge & Fatty

Processad UCO

Opening Stock

Production during the year
Sales during the year

Clasing stock of processad UCO

RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED
Secds

Opening Stock

Purchaged During the Yaar
Sales During the year

Closing Stock of Seeds
Tallow

Opening Stack

Purchased During the Year
Consumed During the year
Closing Stack of Tallow

Palm Stearineg

Opening Stoek

Purchased During the Year
Consurmed During the vear
Closing Stock of Palm Stearine
Fatty Acld Oll

Opening Stock
Purchased During the Year

Consumed During the year

Hudhud Loss
Closing Stock of Fatty Acid Oil

Rice Bran Qil

Opsaning Stock

Purchased during the year
Sales during the year
Consumed during the year
Closing Stock of Rice Bran Qil
Used Cooking Oil

Opening Stock

Purchased during the year

Sales during the year
Consumed during the year
Hudhud Loss

Closing Stock of Lised Gooking Qll

93,134

14,791

14,791

3,23 388
55,11,195
57,30,727

1,03,856

459,326
14,28 625
16,52,950

2,35,001

6,40,980
32.54,186
19,19,845

11,47.974
94,684

54,958
2,22 90,425
1,98,46,034
11,68,034
13,31,315

6,78,800
1,66.40.370

1,10,73,.970
46,86,981
9,78,276

5,79,943

20,96 469

1,57,363

1,657,363

1,21,35,914
21,01,88,787
21,83,67,306

39,57,395

2,28,14,425
6,00,20,237
7,29,64,620

88,70,042

3,26,09,934
16,67,76,504
10,08,59,156

5,75,87,530
46,34 611

23,683,540
110,91,30,564
106,41,42,121
5,85,10,500
7.63,74,103

3,04,44 526
70.49.61,538

48,10,71.481
23,33,88,185
4,53,41,840

2,50.93,810

2,45,111

5.56,154
54,49 466
60,05,620

14,791

14,791

2,00,920
66,16,882
64,84,.414

323,388

27,399
28,52,388
24,20,461

4,509,326

30,624
11,458,365
5,34,909

6,40,980

3.42,285
1,14,80,859
91,563,762
26,24 421
54,958

3,32,676
1,78.40,162

1,35,63,904
39,440,164

6.78,800

53,34,146

2,78,07,700
20,09,56,233
33,95,55,941

1,57,363

1,57,363

87,91,084
24,45,58,365
24,12,13,515

1,21,35,914

967,228
12,71,53,731
10,53,06,534

2,28,14,425

9,687,760
5,73,58,460
2,57,36,286

3,26,09,934

1,41,54,003
54,35,49,345
42.59,18,670
12,94.21,138
23,63,540

1,46,49,058
79,80,19.052

67.00,17,506
17,67,18,384

3,04,44,526
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Paim Sludge Oil
Opening Stock

Purchased During the Year

Consumed During the year
Closing Stock of Used Cooking Cil

- 1,689,455
- 1,69,455

74,78,5/4
74,78,574

36. DETAILS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The company has entered into the following related party transactions as on 31*March, 2015 such parties and
transactions are identified as per Accounting Standard 18.

{a) The following are the list of related parties:

Name of the Party

Relationship

Mr. N. Satish Kumar

Promoter & Managing Director

Mr. K. Radha Krishna

Promoter, Whole Time Director & CFO

Mr. B. Sreedhara Reddy

Promoter & Director Administration

Mr. B.H.R Balaiji

Promoter & Executive Director

b)

The following are the related party fransactions:

{Rs in Lakhs)

Name of the Party Relationship Nature of Amount Amount
Transaction 31.03.15 31.03.14

Mr. N. Satish Kumar Promater & Managing Director Remuneration | 19,20,000 19,20,000
Vehicle lease 8,50,000 -

Mr. K. Radha Krishna Promoter, Whole Time Director | Remuneration | 12,00,000 12,00,000
&cro Veficke lease | 8,50,000 =

Mr. B. Sreedhara Reddy | promater & Director Administratior | REMuneration | 12,00,000 12,00,000
Vehicle lease 8,30,000 -

Mr. B.H.R Balaji Promoter & Executive Diractor Remuneration | 12,00,000 12.,00,000

37. PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS: NIL
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38. Earning per share

The eaming considered in ascertaining the companies earning per share comprise net profit after tax. The number
of shares used in computing basic eamings per shame is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during

the year.
{ Rupees }
Partlculars 201415 201314
Profit available for the equity shareholders (Rs) {11,89,63,799) {17,06,94,915)
No. of Shares outstanding for EPS - Basic 5,89,83,288 5,12,77.874
Total No. of Shares outstanding EPS-Dilutad 5.86,03,288 512,77 .874
Basic {1.98) {4.93)
Diluted (1.98) {4.93)
39. Confirmations were obtained from debtors/ creditors as to the balances receivable / payable to them as at year

40.

ended 31* March, 2015.

Bank Guarantees
The Company has outstanding guarantees and counter guarantees of Rs 1,78,98,799/- as on 31.03.2015

(previous year ended 31.03.2014 is Rs 1,89,98,799/-) to bank, in respect of the guarantees given by the bank in
favour of The President of India, Govemment of India, acting through the Telegraph Authority, and Ministry of
Rallways, Indlan Rallways Organlsation for Alternate Fuels (IROAF).

41. Letter of Cradit
The company has outstanding Letter of credit to the extent of Rs 65,77,22, 406 as on 31.03.2015 {previcus year
Rs 46,41,21,151/- as on 31.03.2014)

42. Right of Recompense {(ROR)

a) ROR to COR lenders for the relief and sacrifice extended is subject to the provisions of COR guidelines and
MRA
b} As per CDR package the ROR amount for the year 2014-15is Rs 12.16 cr.

43. The Visakhapatnam unit of the Company was effectad by the natural calamity ie., Cyclone Hudhud on 12"
October 2014. Dus to the cyclone, the unit has incurred the loss of Rs 1914.29 lakhs. The damages are properly
covered with the insurance and the petition for the claim of such losses has been already filed to the insurance
company. The claim of tha Company ig under process with the National Insurance Company limited as on
balance date.

44. Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

45. The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

As par our report of aven data

For and on behalf of the Baord of Directors

for P Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0072573

Sdf -
A.Krishna Rac
Partner

M.No: 020085

Place :Hyderabad
Date : 27 05.2015

for Southern Online Bio Technologies Lid

Sd/- Sdf-
N Satish Kumar K Radha Krishna
Managing Directar Whole Time Director & CFO

Sd/-
G Anupama
Caompany Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Southern Online Bio Technologies Ltd.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Southern Online Bio Technologies
Lid. (“the Company"}, which comprise Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss
and Cash Flow Statement for the year then snded, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section (134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pesition, financial parformance preparation and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of Companies
{Acocounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safaguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies,
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a trua and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.
We conducted cur audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the financial statements, that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and the operating effectivenass of such controls. An audit alse includes evaluating the appropriatensss of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Cirectors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtainad is sufficiont and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles ganerally accepted in India of the state of affairs
of the group as at 31 March 2015, its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2015 (the Order”) issued by the Central
Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules,
2014.

e} On the basis of written representations recsived from the Directors as on March 31, 20115, and taken cn
record by the Board of Directors none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repart in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us;

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31% March, 2015 on its financial
pasition in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term confracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For P Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0072578

Sd/-

A Krishna Rao
Partner

M.No. 020085
Place : Hyderabad
Date :27.05.2015
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report of even date fo the members of Southem Online Bio Technolegies
Ltd on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31* March, 2015 Under “Report on other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements”.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given ta

us during the course of our audit, we report that;

I. {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of Fixed Assels.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals; as
informed to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The Company has nat dispoesed off substantlal part of the Fixed Assets durlng the year.

Il. (&) The inventory including stocks with certain third parties, has been physically verified by the management during
the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have subsequently been confirmed by them. In
our opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b} In our opinion, the procedures of the physical verification of inventory followed by the Management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

{¢) The Company Is maintaining proper records of Inventory and as explained to us, no material discrepancles
were noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to book records.

ll. The Company has not grantediny loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms or cther parties
cavered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

IV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is adequate intemal control
system commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed
assets and for sale of services. Further on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the
Company and according to the information and explanations given to us, no major weakness has been noticed
or reported.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the publlc covered under Section 73 to 76 of the companies
Act,2013.

V1. We have broadly reviewed the bocks of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of products where,
pursuant to the rules mads by the Central Govemment of India, the maintenance of cost records has bean
specified under sub sectian (1) of section 148 of the Aci, and are of the apinion that prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the records with & view to determine whether they are accurate or complete,

VIl. a} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the cormpany examined
by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and cther material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate autharities in India;

b} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other material statutery dues in ammears as at 31* March
2015 for a periad of more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

¢} According to tha information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty and excise Duty which
have not been deposited on account of any dispuies.
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d} There are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 [1 of 1956] and rules made there under.

VlIl. The Company has been registered for a period of more than 5 years. The accumulated losses of the Company
as on March 31, 2015 are more than 50% s net worth and the company has incurred cash losses In this
financial yvear and in the immediately preceding financlal year.

IX. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not dsfaulted in
repayment of dues to financial institutions/banks. The Company has not issued any debentures.

X. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loan taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

XI. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Term Loans obtained by the
Company were applied for the purpose for which such loans were obtained.

XlI. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by tha
Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or raported during the year.

For P Murali & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 072575

sd/-
Place : Hyderabad A Krishna Rao
Date :27.05.2015 Partnar

Membership no. 020085
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31® MARCH 2015

Particulars

Note No

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

{Rupees) {Rupees)
. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 1 58,99,32,580 51,27,78,740
(b} Reserves and Surplus 2 (51,45,33,345) {39,70,02,005)
{c} Minority Interest - -
(2} Shame applicatdon money pending for allotment 3 30 7.71.54,170
{3} Non-Current Llabllitles
{a) Long-term borrowings 4 147 ,99,07,966 129,17,76,780
{b) Doferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 (16,85,97,988) 3,59,59,554
{c} Other Long term liabilities 8 5,80,00,000 5,80,00,000
{4} Current Liabilities
{a) Short-term bormowings 7 36,18,42,504 14,27 59,867
(b} Trade payables 8 64,12,55,355 43,70,27 487
{c) Short-term provisions 9 1,35,41,768 1,21,05,772
Total 246,13,49,260 217,05,60,366

IL. Assets
{1} Non-current assets
{a) Fixed assets

() Tangible assets 10&1 111,50,95,265 122,96,24,923

(ii} In Tangible asssts 10& 1 - 2,7546,114

(i) CWIP 10& 11 253,411,272 -
(b} Non-current nvestments 12 34,30,970 34 ,30,970
{c} Long term loans and advances 13 - 1,18,84 852
{d) Other non-current assate 14 9,92 54 006 4,84 .94 866
{2) Current assets
{a) Inventories 15 31,49,60,085 34,85,62,240
{b) Trade receivables 16 58,23,06,734 35,91,63,719
{c} Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,62,19,519 6,39,80,028
{d} Short-term lcans and advances 18 30,47 .,41,409 7,78,72,654

Total 246,13,49,260 217,05,60,366

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 28

The accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial

Statements

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
For P. Murali & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No: 0072575

Sd/-
A_Krishna Rao
Partner

M.No.020085
Flace : Hyderabad

Date: 27.05.2015.

For Southem Cnline Bio Technolegies Lid.

Sd/-
N. Satish Kumar
Managing Director

Sd/ -
G.Anupama

Sdi-
K. Radha Krishna
Whole Time Director & CFQ

Company Secretary
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%" MARCH 2015

STANDALONE

For the year For the year
Particulars Note ended ended
No 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rupees) {Rupees}
|. Revenue from operations 19 246,95,02,160 | 201,40,12,108
Il. Other Income 20 41,62,945 11,02,082
lll. Tetal Revenue {l +lI) 247,36,65,105 | 201,51,14,190
Iv. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 21 80,28,57,825 87,00,37,993
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 21 139,60,63,675 91,94,27,173
Changes in inventaries of finished goods, work-in-progress 22 (2,10,99,586) (5,38,02,201)
Employee benefit expense 23 2,62,80,411 2,71,88,858
Other operating expenses 24 19,56,91,348 17,32,41,1186
Administrative Expenses 25 3,61,81,633 3,14,68,973
Flnance costs 26 19,71,43,890 18,31,586,055
Depreciation and amartization expense 10&11 11,96,00,048 7,60,73,790
Other expenses 27 4,24,67,301 4,09,97,905
Total Expenses 279,51.86,448 | 226,77.89,662
V. Profit before exceptional and extracrdinary items and tax (Ill-1V} (32,15,21,341) | (25,26,75472)
VI. Excepficnal tems - -
V1. Profit before extracrdinary items and tax (V - VI) (32,15,21,341) | (25,26,75472)
VIil. Extracrdinary kems
{1) Losses due 1o Cyclone HudHud 19,14,29,244 -
{2} Insurance claimed for Cyclone loss (19,14,29,244) -
IX. Profit before tax (V1 - VII1) (32,15.21,341) | (25,26,75472)
X. Tax expense:
{1) Current tax - -
{2) Deferred tax (20,45,57,542) (8,19,80,557)
Xl. Profit{Loss) from tha period from continuing opetations ( IX - X) {11,69,63,799} | (17,06,94,915)
XlI. Prafitf{Loss) from discontinuing operations - -
Xl Tax expense of discounting operations - -
XIV. Profit{Loas} from Discentinuing eperations (XII - XIII - - -
XV, Profit/(Loss) for the period (X + X1V} - | {11,89.63,799) | (17,05,94,915)
XVI. Eaming per equity share:
{1) Basic (1.98) {4.93)
{2) Diluted
Sumrmary of Significant Accounting Policies 28
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NOTENQ. 1 : SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
S.no. Particulars No. of No. of
Shares (Rupees) shares {(Rupees)
A | Share Capital ( For each class of capital )
{a) Authorized 7,50,00,000 | 75,00,00,000 | 7,50,00,000 | 75,00,00,000
(b} Issued 5,89,93,288 | 58,99,32,880 | 512,77,874 | 51,27,78,740
{c) Subscribed & Fully Paid Up 5,89,93,268 | 58,69,32,880 | 5,12,77,874 | §1,27,78.,740
{d} Subscribed & not fully paid up
{e} Par value par shars Rs. 10
Total Equity Share capital 58,99,32,880 §1,27,78,740
B | ARecongiliation of the number of shares
outstanding at the beginning and at the Nurnber of Shares Number of Shares
end of the reporting period:
Equity Shares of Rs.10Each, Fully paid
up:
At the Beginning 5,12,77,874 3,46,13,815
Issued during the year - Cash lssue - .
lssued during the year - ESOP - .
lssuad during the year - Pref lssus 7715414 1,66,64,059
Forfeitad / Bought Back during the year - -
At the end 5,89,93,288 512,77,874
d | Details of Shareholder holding more than
5% shares of the company: % of Share Halding
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each Held By
(a) Share Holder - N. Satish Kumar No. of
Shares (CY) 60,27,652, No. of Shares 10.22 10.28
(PY)52,71,292.
(b} Share Holder - Advait BY No. of Shares 7.33 -
(C.Y)43,23,267 , No. of Shares ( P.Y) NIL. '
{(c) Share Holder -Al Sried Company for
Trade Limited - No. of Shares (C.Y) 5.77 6.64
34,086,769, No. of Shares (P.Y)34,06,769. ' ’
(d) Share Holder -The Indiaman Fund
Mauritius_ Limited - No. Of Shares (P.Y) - 5.20
26,64,325.
99 ) STANDALONE
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NOTE NO. 2 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

5. No. Particulars (Rupeas) (Rupees)
| RESERVES AND SURPLUS
a) Securities Premium Reserve
As at the commencement of the year 25,31,87,500 25,31,87,500
Add; Additions during the year ) _
Less: Utilized during the year ) _
25,31,87,500 25,31,87,500
b) Surplus :
i) Opening Balance - Profit and Loss Account (68,68,50,282) (51,61,55,367)
Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss Account {11,69,63,799) (17,068,864 915)
Less: Transfer To Ganeral Reserve - -
Less: Assets Written off (5,67.,541) -
Less: Bonus sharses - -
Less: Transfer toffrom reserves. - -
(80,43,81,622) (68,68,50,282)
c) Share warrants forfeited premium :
As at the commencement of the year 331,63 000 3,31,83,000
Add: Additions during the year . .
Less: Utllized during the year . .
3,31,63,000 3,31,63,000
A Reserve specifically represented by eammarked
I investmants - -
]} MNegative balance of raserves and surplus account - -
Add: VAT Subsidy Received 34 97,777 34,97.777
Total Reserves and Surplus {51,45,33,345) (39,70,02,005}

NOTE NO. 3 : SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING FOR ALLOTMENT

As at 31.03.2015 | As at31.03.2014

5. No. Partlculars (Rupees) {Rupees)
I Share Application Money 7.71,54,170 16,09,40,593
Add : Received during the year - 8,28,54,167
TOTAL SHARE APPLICATION MONEY 7.71,54,17Q 24,37.94,760
Less : Share application money egquity shares allotted 7.71,54,140 16,66,40,590
Balance share application money <) 7,71,54,170

STANDALONE
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NOTE NO. 4 : LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

{Rupess) {Rupses)
I Long Term borrowings
a) Secured Term loans from Banks:
Bank of India, Banjara Hills, - Loan for Flats 19,74,371 34.47,761
{ Secured by Hypothecation of the Flats of the
company )
Punjab National bank -- Vehicle Loan. 11,12,773
( Hypothecation of Vehicle of the company }
HDFC Bank of India - Vehicle Loan. 7,286,671
( Hypothecation of Vehicle of the company )
ICICI Bank - Vehicle Loan. 11,54,080 9,63,610
{ Hypothacation of Vehicle of the company )
TERM LOANS - ( BOIL,SBH,UCO & PNB ) 145,61,24 532 128,33,50,981
( Secured by total Plant & Machinery of the
company )
b} Unsecured Loans from Directors /Others:
Unsecured Loan 2,06,54,983 21,74,984
Total long term borrowings 147,99,07 966 129,17,76,780

NOTE NQ. 5 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY ( NET )

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

8. No. Partlculars (Rupees) (Rupees)
| Opening Deferred tax Liability 3,69,60,554 11,79.40,111
Add: Deferred Tax Liability for the year (20,45,57,542) {8,19,80,557)
Deferred Tax Liabillty/ { Asset ) — Net (16,85,97,988) 3,59,59,554

NOTE NO. 6 : OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITES

8. No,

Particulars

As at 31.03.20M15

As at 31.02.2014

(Rupees) {Rupees)
1 a) Trade Payables & Others
- Other Long term Liabiities 5,80,00,000 5,80,00,000
Total other long term llabllitles 5,80,00,000 5,80,00,000
STANDALONE
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NOTE NQ. 7 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS.

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

S. No. Particulars {Rupees) (Rupees)
! Short term borrowings
a) Loans repayable on demand:
From banks
Secured 36,18,42,594 14,27 59,867
Total shert term borowings 36,18,42,594 14,27,59,867

NOTE NO. 8 : TRADE PAYABLES

5. No. Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

(Rupees) {Rupees)
| a) Trade Payables 64,12,55355 43,70,27,487
Total Trade Payables 64,12,55,355 43,70,27 487

NOTE NO. 9 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

8. Neo. Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

(Rupees) {Rupees)
| a) Provisions for employee banefits
PF Payable 3,689,287 4,09,733
Salaries Payable 39,498,220 37.44,300
b) Others

Statutory Llabilltles 31,04,849 30,78,461
Provision for Expenses 60,49,412 39,73,278

Total short term provislons 1,35,41,768 1,21,05,772

STANDALONE
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NOTE N©Q. 12 : NON- CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Az at 31.03.2015 Asg at 31.03.2014

8. No. Particulars (Rupaas) (Rupaes)
) Non- Current Investments.
1} Investment in Subsidiaries
a) Equity Shares 34,30,970 34,30,970
{Scuthem Biofe Blo Fusls Pvt Ltd - 29.97%)
Total Non - Current Assets { Net ) 34,320,870 34,30,970

NODTE NO. 13 : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

8. No. Particulars (Rupees) (Rupees)
| Long - term loans and advances:
a) Security Deposit - 1,18,84,852
Total Long ferm loans & advances{ net } - 1,18,84 RS2

NOTE NC.14 : OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

5. Nao. Particulars (Rupaas) (Rupses)
1 Long term Trade receivable
Unsecured considered good 5.91,16,020 4,84 .94 866
ii)insurance claim on Fixed Assets 4,01,37,986 -
Total non - current assets{ net } 9,92,64,006 4,84,94,866

NOTE NO. 15 ; INVENTORIES

S. No. Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

{(Rupees) {Rupees)}
1 a) Raw materials

Palm Stearin 98,70.042 22,814,425
Mutton Tallow 39,57.,395 121,35,914
Rice Bran Qil 7,63,74,103 23,683,540
Used Cooking Oil 2,60,83,810 3,04 44,526
Soeds 1,567,363 1,567,363
Fatty Acid Qi 46,34,611 3.26,09,934
Chemicals & Consurmables 2,03,60,046 1,06,25,841
Sub Total 14,04,47,370 11,11,51,543

b) Work - in — progress
i} Bio Dleseal - 6,45.645
Sub Total - 6,45.645

c) Finished goods
Bio Diesgsal 10,08,73,679 5,62,02,337
Glycerin 5,29,92 850 6,22,80,110
Rice Bran Qil 57,14 ,856 7,80,89,725
Sludge and Fatty Acid 20,986,459 53,34,146
Sub Total 16,16,77,854 20,28,86,318
d) Stores and spares 1,28,34 861 3,38.78,734
Total Inventores 31,49,60,085 34,85,62,240
STANDALONE {104)
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NOTE NO. 16 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

. As at 31.03.2015 | As at 31.03.2014
8. No. Particulars (Rupees) {Rupees)
Unsecurad, Considered Good 58,23,08,734 35,91,83,719
Total Trade Receivables(net} 58,23,06,734 35,91,83,719
NOTE NO. 17 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES
. As at 31.03.2015 | As at 31.03.2014
$. No. Particulars (Rupess) (Rupees)
I Cash and cash equivalents
a) Balances with banks :
1) On Cumant Accounts 1,37,10,616 6,29,35,528
b) Cash on hand 25,08,903 10,44,500
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,62,19,51% 6,39,80,028
NOTE NO. 18 : SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
5. No. Partlculars As at 31.03.2015 | As at 31.03.2014
{Rupees) (Rupees)
[ Short - Term Loans and Advances:
a) Security Deposit
LC Margin & Other Deposit 4.,88,52,722 3,85,44,430
b) Other loans And advances
Secured - Raw Material efc.. 23,23,87,300 1,46,32,384
Secured - Other Advances 2,35,01,387 246,985,840
Total short term Iecans & advances 30,47.41,409 7,78,72,654
STANDALONE
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NOTE NO. 19 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

For the year ended
S. No. Particulars 31032015 31.03.2014
{Rupaes) {Rupaes)
| Revenue from operations

{a) Sale of Producis {Domestic) 180,11,85,045 85,07,76,204

{(b) Export Sale of Products 27.82,14,018 33,95,55,041

{c) Export Sale ( Exports Out Side India Stock in Trade) 48,10,71 480 67,00,17,508

(d) Sale of Services 5,19,97,143 4,27,95,073

{e) Other Operating Revenue 5,96,78,125 1,43,00,000

Less: Excise Duties& Customs dufies 26,43.651 34,32,618

Total Revenue from Operatlons 246,9502,160 | 201,40,12,108

NOTE NQ. 20 : OTHER INCOME

For the year ended

8. No, Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rupeass) {Rupeass}
| {a)0ther non-operating income(net of expenses directiy atiributed to
such income) 27 66,102 18,95,195
{b) Net gainlless on foreign cumrency translation and transaction
{other than considerad as finance cost) 13,96,843 (7.93,113)
Total Other Income 41,62,94% 11,02,082
NOTE NO. 21 : COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED & PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
For the year ended
$. No. Particulars 3032015 31.03.2014
(Rupees) {Rupaes)
| Material
Palm Stearin 7,29,64,620 10,53,06,535
Mutton Tallow 21,83,67,306 2412,13,515
Rice Bran Qil 112,51,09,265 55,36,38,465
Used Cooking Qil 66,19,70 427 78,22 24 484
Palm Sludge QOil - 74,78,574
RB Acid oil. - 17,01,343
Fatty Acid Oil 2,33,74,123 2,57,36,266
Chemicals & Consumables 58,018,361 5,97,45,964
STANDALONE {106)
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Sub total 21598,04,102 | 177,70,45 166
IRCAF Sub contract Expanses 3,91,17,298 1,24,20,000
Total Cost Of Material Consumed 219,8,821.400 | 178,94,65,166
NOTE NO. 22: CHANGE IN INVENTORIES & WIP.
For the year ended
5. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rupees) {Rupees)
| Finished Goods
Flnlshad. g!oods at the beginning of the ysar 20.28,86,318 1470,66,986
Less : Finished goods at the end of the year 16.16,77 854 20,26,86,318
Sub Total (A) 4,12,08,464 {5,58,19,332)
Work In Progress
Work in prog.gress at the beglnnlng.of the year 6,45,645 26,6276
Less: Work in progress at the ending of the year ) 6.45,645
Less : Loss due to Cyclone Hudhud 5.29 53,695 }
Sub Total (B) {6,23,08,050) 20,117,131
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (A+B) (21,099,586) (5,38,02,201)
NOTE NO. 23 : EMLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
For the year snded
{Rupees) {Rupees)
| {a) Salaries & Wages 1,84.49 452 1,88,91,643
{b) Confribution to Provident & Other Funds 30,00,238 31,01,556
{c) Staff Welfare Expenses 48,30,721 51,095,658
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 26280411 2,71,88,858
NOTE NO. 24 : OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
For the year ended
S. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rupees) {Rupees)
: {a) Consumption of Chemicals , Stores & Spares 1,75,38,573 45,93,281
{b) Power & Fuel 6,50,37 864 7,00,38,338
{c) Rent 61,540 83,990
{d) Repairs to Machinery 1,18,14,990 59,37,196
{e) Insurance 11,61,607 20,52,566
QoY STANDALONE
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{f) Ratas & Taxes ( Excluding Income Tax )
{g)Bandwidth
{h)Qther Mfg Expenses
{)Factory Wages
{j}Shipping Charges
(k) Payment to Auditors:
(i) As Auditor
{ii) For Taxation Matters
(iii) For Company Law Matters
(iv} For Management Services

73,36,825
3,30,95,000

93,81,458
2,82,86,650
2,18,31,941

75,000
25,000
25,000
26,000

13,68,933
2,47,38,374
1,07.21,983
2,20,45,181
3,15,36,294

65,000
20,000
20,000
20,000

Total Other Expenses

19,56,91,348

17,32.41,118

NOTE NO. 25 : ADMINSTRATIVE EXPENSES

For tha yaar andad

3. No. Particulars 1032015 31.05.2014
{Rupees) (Rupeos)

' {a) Telsphona, Postage and Others 20,53,814 27,08,723

{b) Buslness Promotion Expenses - 10,000

{c) Travelling & Conveyance 1,66,13,004 1,08,90,607

{d) Office Maintenance 30,58,313 2277252

{8) Printing & Stationery Expenses 4,28,638 4.28,452

{f) Security Charges 9,06,378 8,32,2562

(g) Rent Rates & Taxes {excluding Income Tax) 28,77,290 32,09,796

{h) Managerial Remuneraticn 43,20,000 55,20,000

{i) Consultancy Charges 37.,20,775 46.88,197

{i) Gen Expenses 386,498 4,09,761

{k) Director’'s Sitting Fee / Board Meeting Expenses 18,16,833 7.95,933

Total Administrative Expenses 3,61,81,633 3,14,68,973

NOTE NO. 26 : FINANCE COST

Far the yaar andead

5. No. Particulars 31.05.2015 31.03.2014
{Rupeas) {Rupass}
| (@) Interest Expenses : -
- Interest on Gash Credit 3,73,41,816 2,76,69,323
- Interest on Car Leans f Term Leans 13,81,50,955 11,23,.84,832
- Loan processing Charges & Bank Charges 2.16,51,119 3,09,90,661
- CDR - Facilitation Charges - 1,21,11,239
Total Finance Cost 19,71,43,890 18,31,56,055
STANDALONE (@
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NOTE NO. 27 : OTHER EXPENSES

For the year ended

S. No. Particulars 1032013 31.03.2014
{Rupsas) {Rupass}

Loss on Sale Of Vehicles 21,87 587 3,30,156
Advertisements 4,000 51,202
Collection Expenses 85,000 2,24 521
Commizgien & Discounts 2853,598 228,186,727

Freight Charges - Qutward & Insurance 3,37 59,703 1,26,20,715

Business Promotion Expenses 35,77.413 49,54 484

Total Other expenses 4,24 67,301 4,09,97,905

STANDALONE
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the accounts for the year
ended 31% March 2015.

1. Corporate information:

Southem Online Bio Technologies Limited was originally incorporated as Southem Onling Services Private Limited
vide certiflcate of Incorporation no.01-30463 dated Movember 9, 1998 with Reglstrar of Companles, Hyderabad
and subsequently convertad into a Public Limited Company on January 4, 2000. The name of the Gompany has
bean Changed to Southern Online Bio Technelogies Limited on 31" March 2004 to reflact the new line of business
in which the Company has ventured i.e. manufacture of Bicdiesel. Currently the Company's shares are listed at
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

The Company is one of the first private sector ISPs to commence operations in the state of Andhra Pradesh.
However, consldering the opportunites In the fleld of manufacture and supply of alternative fuels to petroleum-
based fuels, the promoters have decided to diversify into production and supply of bicdiesel. The Company has
established 40,000 liters per day capacity Biodiesel production unit from non-edible vegetables cils, fatty acids,
animal fats, etc for partial substitution or using as a blend in fossil diesel. This project is located at Samsthan
Narayanpur {v), Nalgonda Dist, Telangana. The Second Bio dlesel unit with a capaclty of 250 TPD Is located at
APIG, SEZ, visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh.

Summary of Significant Policies:

General:

(i) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles under the histarical cost convention on accrual basis, exception for certain tangible assets which ara
being carried at revalued amounts. Pursuant to Secdtion 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule7 of the
Companies {Accounts}) Rules 2014, ill the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by
Central Govemment in consultation and recommendation of the National Finandal Reporting Authority, the existing
Accounting standards notified under the Companies Act 1956, shall continue to apply. Consequently these
financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounts)Rules, 2006, as
amended] and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Companies normal
operating cycle and other eriteria set out in Scheduls 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalent, the company has asceriained its operating cycle to be 12 months for the purpose of current —ncn
current classification of assefs and liabilities.

iy Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent and in consonance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

iii) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Genarally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in
India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosures of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of
income: and expenses during the period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with hanks. Cash equivalents are short term balances (with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible Into known amaunts of cash and which are subject to inslgnificant Hsk of changes In value,

Cash Flow Statement

Gash Flows are raportad using the indirect method, whersby Profit / {loss) befora extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing acfivities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

STANDALONE {110)
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Tangible and Intangible Assets

Tangible fixed assots

Tangible fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation. The cost
of fixed assets includes taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authoritises), duties, freight and
other directly attributable costs related to the acquisition or construction of the respective assets,

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on inifial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at ¢ost less accumulated amortization and accumdated impaimment loss, if any. Profit
or Loss on dispesal of intangible assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Work-in-Progress
Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are carried at
cost, comprising direct cost, related Incldental expenses and attrlbutable Interest.

Depreciation and Amortization

Effective 1% April, 2014, Company depreciates the Fixed assets over the useful life in the manner prescribed in
Schedule || of the Companies Act, 2013 as against the sarlier practice of depreciating at tha rates prascribed in
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

Depreciation for additions to fixed assets of the Company is provided as per Schedule 1l of the Compenies Act,
2103 on pro rata basls.

The carrying value of fixed assets whose life has completed as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 is
transferred to Retained earnings amounting to Rs 5,67, 542/ .

Invaestments

Investments are classified into Current and long-term investments. Investments that are readily realizable and
intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of acquisition is dassified as Current Investments. All
other investments are classified as long-term investments.

Long term investments are stated at cost and provision for diminution is made if the decline in value is other than
temporary in nature. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value determined on the basis of each
category of investments.

Inventorles

Raw materials, wark-in-progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of the cost ar net realizable value,
Cost comprises of expenditure incurred in the nomal course of business in bringing such inventories to their
present locatlon and condition.

Revenue recognition

The Company follows the mercantile system of Accounting and recognizes income and expenditure on acaual
basis. Revenue is not recognized cn the grounds of prudence, until realized in respect of liguidated damages,
delayed payments as recovery of the amounts are not certain.

Sales are shown at net of sd es tax / service tax. These taxes are recognized consisiently as a liability.
Interest income is recognizad using the time proportion method, based on the transactional interest rates.
Commission income is due on rendering of services.

Forelgn Exchange Transactlons
Transactions in forsign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the respective dates of the
relevant transactions.

Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions are being recognized as income cor expense in the
year in which they arse. In the case of current assets the current liabiliies expressed in foreign currency, the
exchange rate prevalent at the end of the year is taken for the purposes of transaction.
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Retlrement Beneflts

The Company has not taken actuarial valuation reports towards Gratuity & Leave encashment liability. In the books
of accounts there was no provision made.

Segment reporting

The Company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of product
and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and
servas different markets. The analysis of gecgraphical business is basad on the areas in which major operating
divisions of the Company operates. The disclosure of segment reporting has fumished as per Accounting
Standard — 17.

Related Party Disclosures:
The Campany furmishes the details of Related party Disclosures as required by AS-18.

Earnings per Share
The basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit afier tax for the year by
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Taxes on Income
Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Income taxes are computed using the tax effect accounting method, where taxes are acerued in the same peried in
which the related revenue and expenses arise. A provisien is made for income tax annually based on the fax
liability computed, after cansidering tax allowances and axempfions. Provisions are recordad when it is estimated
that a liability due to disallowances or other matters is probable. Minimum Altemnate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance
with the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustments of future incame tax
liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax after the tax
holiday period. Accordingly, it is recognized as an asset in the balance shest when it is probable that the future
scanomic benefit associated with it will flow o tha Company and the asset can ba measurad reliably.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial
statements are identified, and thereafter a defarred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded for timing
differences, namely the differences that originate in one accounting period and reverse in another, based on the
tax effect of the aggregate amount being considerad. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing
differences at the end of the accounting pericd based on prevailing enacted or substantially enacted regulations.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty that they will be realized and are reviewed for
the appropriations of their respective carmrying values at each balance.

Provislons, Contingent Llabilltles and Contingent Assets

The Company creates the provisions where there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probalby
requires an outflow of rescurces and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation. A disclosure
for contingent liability will be made when there is a possible obligation or present obligation that may but prabably,
will ot required the outflow of resources. Where, there is a possible obligation or present obligaton in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provisions or disclosures will be made.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

28. Share Capital:
The Equity Share Capital of the company as on 31% March, 2015 is 5,89,03,288 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
gach fully paid up.

During the year:

During the year 2014-15 the Company has allotted 77,15,414 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each and the same
is included in the share capital as on 31° March 2015.
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29. Investments
During the year 2004-05 the Company has invested the 3,43,097 Equity shares of Rs 10/~ each fully paid
up to the shareholders of Southern Biofe Fuels Private Limited as 99.97% subsidiary company and same
is approved by Board of Directors.

No other investments were made by the Company.
3d. Segmant Reporting

The activities of the Company can be broadly classified into Internat Sarvice Provider (ISP}, Manufacturing
of Bio Diesel, Used Cooking Qil trading and Contractand construction of Bio diesel plant for IROAF at Tondiarpet, Chennai.

The ISP Division provides Internet Bandwidth to the Corporate Clients, Educational Institutions, Cyber
Cafes & Individual etc.,

The Bio Diesel division manufactures the Bio diesel.

Incgome and direct expenses relation to segments are categarized based on items that are individually
identiflable to that segment, while the reminder of cost is apportioned on appropriate basis. Certain
expensas which are not specifically allocable to individual segments as the relevant services are used
interchangeably. The company therefore believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures
relating to such expenses. Accordingly, they are separately disclosed as unallowable and directly charged
against total income.

In other segment shown in the table given below includes:-
a) The income and expenditure relating to 30 TPD capacity Bio diesel unit at Tondiarpet, Chennai.
k) The income and expenditure relating to Cross country trading of Used Cocking Qil.

The assets of the company are used interchangeably batween ssgments, and the managemeant believes
that it is not practical to provide ssgmaent disclosure relating to total assats and liabilities.
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Business Segments:
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Statement of ISP Blo Dlesel Others Total
Profit and loss

for the year
ended 2015 2014 2018 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

31.03.2015
Revenues 519.97 | 42795 | 9134.83 9369.00 | 15040.22 | 10343.17 | 24695.02 [ 20140.12

Identifiable 300,03 | 28229 | 684623 | 10579.91 | 14351.81 | 6179.256 | 21588.06 | 17041.46
Operating
Expenses
Allocated 121.16 | 12218 | 409584 334251 175.37 34017 | 439237 3804.87
Expenses
Segmental 8.79 2347 | (1807.23) | (4653.42) 513.04 | 3823.74 | {(1285.40) (706.21)
Operaling
Income
Unallocated - - - - - - - -
Expenses
Profit for the 8.79 23.47 | (1807.23) | (45853.42) 513.04 | 3823.74 | (1285.40) (706.21)
yoar before
Interest

Interest 4.60 14.58 1965.61 1810.71 1.23 6.27 1971.44 1831.56
Expenses
Other Income - 0.26 27.66 {30.31) 13.97 41.07 41.63 11.02

Net profit 4.18 9.14 | (3745.18) | (6394.44) 525.78 | 3858.54 | (3215.21) | (2526.75)
befora taxes
and prior
period items
Provision for - | (1.51) | (2045.58) | (818.29) - - | (2045.58) | (819.81)
taxation
Prior periad - - - - - - - -
Hems
Nat profit after 418 | 1065 | (1699.61) | (5576.15) 52578 | 385854 | (1169.64) | {1706.95)
taxes and
before
exceptional
itemns
Exceptional - - - - - - - -
items
Profit after tax 4,18 | 10.65 | (1699.61) | (5576.15) 525,78 | 3858.54 | (1169.64) | {1706.95)
and
excaptional
items

Geographlcal segments {Rs In Lakhs}

Revenues As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
India 17,102.17 10,044.30
Outside India 7.502.85 10,095.73
Total 24,695.02 20,140.12

31. Deferred Tax Asset! Llabllity:

The current charge for income tax Is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to the
company. Deferrad tax asset and liability is recognized for future consequences stiributable to the timing
differences that result between the profit offered for income tax and the profit as per the Financial Statemerts
Deferred Tax asset and liability are measured as per the tax ratesflaws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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During the current year, the company recognized the deferred tax asset for an amount of Rs 204557 lakhs on
business loss of the current financial year 2014-15 and the earlier years. Such DTA is recognized only fo the
extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidance that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such DTA can be realized.

The certainty for earning future taxable income is evidence with that the company is going to utilize the full
capacity of plant for generation of Bio Diesel situated at Vizag.

(Rupees)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Deferred Tax Liability

a) Opening Balance {3,59,59,554) {11,79,40,111)
Less: Deferred tax asset 20,4557 542 8,19,80,557
Total DTA/{DTL) 16,85,97,988 {3,59,59,554)
32.Foreign Exchange Earnings
(Rupees)
Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
Export of goods 75,92,85.498 1,00,95,73,449

33.Foreign Exchange Outflow

(Rupees)

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

For Purchases £3,01,23,691 80,.18,55,095
Total 83,01,23,691 80,18,55,095

34 Directors’ Remuneration

The Managerial remuneration paid or provided in accordance with Schedule Xl of the Companies

Act, 1956 to the Direclors is as follows:

(Rupees)

Particulars As af 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

Salary & Allowances (Whele Time Directors) 55,20,000 55,20,000

35. Remuneration to Auditors

(Rupees)

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Audit Fees 1,50,000 1,25,000

Total 1,50,000 1,25,000

36. Details of Quantitative Information:

The Company is engaged in the Intemet Service Provider (ISP} services and Biodiesel Unit construction for
Indian Railways (IROAF). The I8P services and IROAF Construction are not capable of being expressed in
any generic unit and hence it is not possible to give the quantitative details [n respect of Bio Diegsl Division
and UCO Merchant trading the quantitative information is as follows:
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201415 2013-14
Qty Value Qty Value
Sl. No. | Quantitative Information (Kgs/Lts) {Rs) (Kgs/Lts) {Rs)

A Licensed Capacity NA NA

B Installed Capacity 286 TPD 288 TPD

c Finished Goods
Biodiesel {in Kgs)
Openlng Stock 8,715,688 5,34,07,072 13,74,113 | 6,23,60,080
Praduction During the Year 1,16,90,850 76,31,58,595 94,20,680 | 43,14,60,558
Slock transfer - - - -
Sales During the year 1,04,73,138 62,44,00,023 97.76,551 | 43,32,06,785
Siudge & Fatty 1,23,292 29,59,008 - -
Hudhud Loss 4,39,556 3,16,48,032 - -
Closing Stock of Bio Dieselin KGs 15,30,552 10,08,73,679 10,18,242 | 5,34,07,072
Glycerine
Cpening Stock 11,85,564 6,52,06,020 11,35,164 | 5,37,27,547
Productlon During the Year 13,37,359 4,90,26,990 7.680,284 | 3,24,09471
Sales During the year 5,568,690 90,94,289 427580 | 1,38,35928
Consurnption for Rice Bran Oil 2,92.402 51,43,591 2,82 304 1,26,37,115
Hudhud Loss 6,111,874 3,05,70,049 - -
Closing Stock of Glycerine 10.59,857 5,29,92,850 11.85,564 | 6,52,06,020
Rice Bran Qil Processed
Cpening Stock 14,486,995 7.95,84,725 51,077 23,568,575
Frocessed During the Year 16,29 787 910,786,285 2595777 | 12,41,20, 118
Bales During the year 28,05,032 15,69,79,68¢ 11,999,858 | 5,84,57.585
Hudhud Loss 18,611 7,28,873 - -
Sludge & Fatty 50,198 12,04,752 - -
Closing Stock of Rice Bran Qil 1,02,051 57.14 856 1446995 | 7.95,84,725
Blodlesel Resldue
Opening Stock - - 62,234 26,110,718
Production During the Year - - - -
Sales Durlng the year - - - -
Consurmption for Bio-Diesel - - 62,234 26,10,716
Closing Stock of Bio-Diesel
Residue - - - -
Sludge & Fatty Acid Oil
Opaning Stock 24511 53,34,146 37,773 8,67,144
Production During the Year 724,319 1,39,99,353 6,56,341 1,30,44,183
Salas During the year 8,76,206 1.51,99,149 451,560 82,23,119
Closing Stock of Siudge & Fatty 93,134 20,96,469 2,45111 53,34,146
Opening Stock - - 556,154 | 2,78,07,700
Froduction durlng the year - - 54,49 466 | 29,09,56,233
Sales during the year - - 60,05,620 | 33,95,55,941
Closing steck of precessed UCO - - - -
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D RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Seads
Opening Stock 14,791 1,57,363 14,791 1,57,363
Purchased During tha Year - - - -
Sales During the year - - - -
Closing Stack of Seeds 14,791 1,57,363 14,791 1,567,363
Tallow
Opening Stock 3,23,388 1,21,35,914 2,00,920 87,91,064
Purchased During the Year 55,11,195 21,01,88,787 66,16,882 | 24,45 58,365
Consumed During the year &/7,30,727 21,83,67,306 64,094,414 | 241213,515
Closing Stock of Tallow 1,03,856 39,57,395 3,23,388 | 1,21,35914
Palm Stearlne
Opening Stock 4,569,326 2,28,14,425 27,3948 9,67,228
Purchased During the Year 14,28,625 6,00,20,237 28,52,388 | 12,71,63,731
Consumed During the year 16,52,950 7,29,64,620 24,20,461 | 10,53,06,534
Closing Stock of Palm Stearine 2,35,001 98,70,042 459326 | 22814425
Fatty Acid Oll
Opening Stock 6,40,980 3,26,00,834 30,524 9,87,760
Purchased During the Year 6,11,885 2,86,86,070 11,45,365 5,73,58,460
Consumed During the year 4,77.803 2,33,74,123 5,34,908 | 2,57,36,286
Hudhud Less 6,80,378 3,32,87,270 - -
Closing Stock of Fatty Acid Oil 94,684 46,34,611 8,40,980 | 3,28,09,934
Rice Bran Oll
Opsning Stock 54,958 23,63,540 342,285 | 1,4154,003
Purchased during the year 2,22,80,425 119,91,30,564 | 1,14,90,859 | 54,35,40,345
Sales during the year 1,98,46,034 106,41,42 121 01,63762 | 42,50,18,670
Consumed during the year 11,568,034 5,85,10,580 26,24,421 | 12,94,21,138
Closing Stock of Rice Bran Qil 13,31,315 7.63,74,103 54,958 23,63,540
Used Cooking Qil
Opeaning Stock 6,78,800 3,04,44 528 3,232,676 | 1,46,49058
Purchasad during the year 1,66,40,370 70,49,61,538 | 1,78,40,192 | 79,80,19,952
Sales during the year 1,10,73,970 48,10,71,481 | 1,35,53,904 | 67,00,17 506
Consumed during the year 48,886,981 23,33,98,185 39,40,184 | 17,67,18,384
Hudhud Loss 9,78,276 4,83,41,840 - -
Closing Stock of Used Cocking Oil 5,79,943 2,50,93,810 6,78,800 | 3,04,44,526
Palm 8ludge Oil
Opening Stock - - - -
Purchased During the Year - - 1,69,455 74,78,574
Consumed During the year - - 1,698,455 74,78,574
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37.

DETAILS OF RELATED FARTY TRANSACTION
The company has enterad inta the following related party transactions as on 31 March, 2015 such parties
and transactions are identified as per Accounting Standard 18.

a) The followlng are the list of related partles:

Name of the Party Relationship
Southern Biofe Biofuels Put. Lid 99.87% Subsidiary
Mr N Satish Kumar Promoter & Managing Director
Mr K Radha Krishna Promoter, Whaole Time Director & CFO
Mr B Sreedhara Reddy Promoter & Director Administration
Mr B H R Balaji Promoter & Executive Director
b) The following are the related party transactions:
IRsin Lakhs}
Name of the Party Relationship Nature of Amount Amount
Transaction 31.03.15 31.03.14
Mr. N. Satish Kumar Promater & Managing Diractor Remuneration 19,20,000 19,20,000
Vehicle lease 8,50,000 -
Mr. K. Radha Krishna Fromoter, Whole Time Director | Remuneration 12,00,000 12,00,000
& CFO Vehicle lease 8,50,000 -

38.
39.

40.

Mr. B. Sreedhara Reddy | promoter 2 Director Administration | Remuneration | 12,00,000 12,00,000
Vahicle lease 8,30,000 -
Mr. B.H.R.Balaji Fromoter & Executive Director Remuneration 12,000,000 12,00,000

PRICR PERIOD ITEMS: NIL

Earning per share:

The earning considersd in ascermining the companies saming per share comprise net profit after tax. The
number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of sharas
outstanding during the year.

{ Rupees )
Partlculars. 201415 201314
Profit available for the equity share holders (Rs) (11,89,63,799) {17,06,94,915)
No.of shares outstanding for EFS-Basis 589,93 288 5.12,77,874
No.of equity shares outstanding of EPS-Diluted 5,80,93 288 5,1277,874
Basic (1.98) (4.93)
Diluted (1.98) (4.93)

Confirmations were obtained from dabtors / creditors as to tha balances racsivable / payable to them as at
year ended 31* March 2015.

41. BANK GUARANTEES
The Company has cutstanding guarantees and counter guaranteas of Rs 1,78,98,799/ as on 31.03.2015
{previous vear ended 31.03.2014 is Rs 1,89,98,799/-) to bank, in respect of the guarantees given by the Bank in
favour of the President of India, Government of India, acting through the Telegraph Authority, and Ministry of
Railways., Indian Raiways Organization for Alternative Fusls {IROAF).
42. LETTER OF CREDITS
The company has cutstanding Letter of Credit to the exdent of Rs. 65,77,22,406/- as on 31.03.2015. (Previous
yoar Rs 46,41,21.151/- as on 31.03.2014).
43. RIGHT OF RECOMPENSE (ROR)
a) ROR to CDR lender for the relief fi and sacrifice extended is subject to the provisions of CDR gudelines and
MRA.
b) As per CDR package the ROR amount for the year 2014-15 is Rs 12.16 Cr.
STANDALONE
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44, The Visakhapatnam unit of the Company was effected by the natural calamity i.e. cyclone Hudhud on 12"
QOctober 2014, Due to the cyclona, the unit has incurred the loss of Rs 1914.29 Lakhs. The damages are
properly coverad with the insurance and the petition for the claim of such lossaes has been alraady filed to the
insurance company. The claim of the company is under process with the National Insurance Company Limited
as on balance sheet date.

45, Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

46, The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

As per our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
for P Murali & Co., for Southern Cnline Bio Technologios Litd
Chartarad Accountants
FRN NG 0072575
Sdr- Sdi- S~
A Krshna Rao N Satish Kumar K Radha Krishna
Partner Managing Director  Whole Time Director & GFC
M.NQ. 20035
Sdf-
G Anupama
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 27/05/2015
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2015
Year Ended Year Ended
PARTICULARS 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{RsinLakhs) | {(Rsin Lakhs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTMVITIES:
Net Loss before tax & extraordinary items (3215.21) (2,526.75)
Adjustments for:
Depraciation 920.54 722.86
Written off Expense 275.46 37.88
Intarest 1,971.44 1,831.56
Operating Profit before working capital charges (47.77) 65.54
Increase in Loans and Advances (2,657.43) {251.17)
Trade and other receivables (2,231.43) 209.33
Inventories 336.02 (1,367.19)
Trade payables - 1,831.02
Cash generated from operations (4,600.61) 487.54
Interest paid 1.971.44 1,831.56
Cash flow before extraordinary items -{A) (6,572.05) (1,344.02}
NET CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital Work in Progress. 253.41 (37.88)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (219.08) 32459
Net cash used In Investing actlvitles -{B) 34.33 286.71
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Creditors for capital goods 2.056.64 -
Increase f decreasa in Secured Loans 407214 1,212.99
Increase in Share Application amount - 800.37
Net Cash used [n Financing actlvities ={C} 6,128.78 2013.36
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - { A-B+C) (477.61) 38263
Cash and Cash equivalents as at { Opening Balance } 635.80 256717
Cash and Cash squivalents as at { Closing Balance ) 162.20 639.80
AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
for P Murali& Cao,, For Southern Online Bio Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants.
FREN Mp. 0072578
d Sd/-
Sd- N Satish Kumar K Radha Krishna
AKrishna Rao Managirg Directer  Whole Time Director & CFO
Partner
M.Ne. 020085 Sd-
Place: Hyderabad G Anupama
Dats : 27.05.2015 Company Secretary
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SOUTHERN ONLINE BIQ TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(CIN: L72900TG1988PLC030463)
Registered Ofice: H No. 8-3-833/173, Kamalapuri Colony, Phase-Il, Hyderabad - 500073
Email: info@sol.net.in, wehsite: www.sol.net.in
Form MGT-11 Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Regd. Folio No. *DP ID
No. of Shares held : *Client ID :
[We, being the member (8) of ... SHAres of the above named

company, hereby appoint
1.Name & Address:

E-mail ID: Signature
or failing him/er

2.Name & Address:

E-mail ID: Signature
or failing him/her

3.Name & Address : ;

E-mail ID: Signature

or failing him/her and whase signatures are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote, in
case of a poll, for mefus and on my/our behalf at the Severteenth Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held on Wednesday, the 30" day of September, 2015 at 10.30 a.m. at Mrugavani

Resorts, # 1771, Aziz Nagar, Moinabad, Hyderabad - 500 075 anhd at any adjourmnment thereof in
respect of resolutions are indicated below:

Sl Resolution(s) Vote
No. For | Against

1 |Adoption of statement of Profit & Loss, Balance Sheef, report of
Director's and Auditor's for the financial vear 31" March, 2015

2 | To appoint a Director in place of Mr N Satish Kumar who retires by
rotation and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment.

3 | To appoint a Director in place of Mr K Radha Krishna who retires by
rotation and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment.
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4 | Re-appointment of M/s.P Murali & Co.,, Chartered Accountants as
Statutory Auditors & fixing their remuneration

5 | Appointment of Mr G Viswanath as Nominee Director of the Company
Re-appointment of Mr. BHR Balaji as Executive Director for a period of
three years

7 | Re-appointment of Mr K Radha Krishna as \Whole Time Director & CFO
for a period of three years

8 | Re-appointment of Mr B Sreedhara Reddy as Director - Administration
for a period of three years

9 [Appointment of M/s.Lavanya & Associates, Cost Auditors for
the year 2015-15

10 |To alter Articles of Association of the Company in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2013

* Applicable for investors holding sharas in Elactronic form. Signed
this day of 2015

Signature of shareholder:

Signature of Proxy holder(s):

Note:

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

1} This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly complated and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2} The proxy need not be a member of the company
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SOUTHERN ONLINE BIO TECHNOQLOGIES LIMITED
{CIN: L72900TG1998PLC030463)
Registered Ofice: H No. 8-3-833/173, Kamalapuri Colony, Phase-ll, Hyderabad - 500073
Email: info@sol.net.in, website: www.scl.net.in

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the mesating hall)

Full name of the member attending

Member's Folioc No/ Client ID: No. of shares held:

Name of Proxy

{To be filled in, if the Proxy attends instead of the member)

| hereby record my presence at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Southem Online Bio
Technologies Ltd., at Mrugavani Resorts, # 17711, Aziz Nagar, Moinabad, Hyderabad - 500 075 on
Wednesday, the 30th day of September, 2015 at 10.30 a.m.

............................................... Member's / Proxy's Signature

Note:
1) Membaears are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting, since further
copies will not be available.

2} The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.

3} A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

43} In the case of jointholders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by Proxy,
shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined
by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.

5) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preciude such meamber from aftending in
perscn and voting at the meeting.
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SOUTHERN ONLINE BIO TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(CIN: L72900TG1998PLC030463)
Registered Ofice: H No. 8-3-833/173, Kamalapuri Colony, Phase-Il, Hyderabad - 500073
Email: info@sol.net.in, website: www.sol.net.in

17 TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Voting Through Electronic Means

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and the revised clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is providing e-
voting facility to the Members of the Company. the facility to vote at the 17" Annual General Meeting to be held
on Wednhasday, the 30" September, 2015. Members of the Company can transact all the items of the business
through electronic voting system, provided by Central Depository Services Limited, as contained in the Notice
of the Meeting.

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but
shall not be entitled to casttheir vote again.

The Company has appointed Mr. S Sarveswar Reddy, Practicing Company Secretary, who inthe apinion afthe
Beard is a duly qualified person, as a Scrutinizer who will collate the elecironic voting process in a fair and
transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall within a period of three working days from the date of conclusion of
the sharehalders meeting, submit his report after consolidation of e-voting and the votes in the shareholders
meeting, castin favour of or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company. Results will be uploaded on the
Company's website as well as intimated to the Stock Exchange (BSE).

The procedure and instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:

The remote e-voting period begins at 9.00 A.M. on 26" September, 2015 and ends at § P.M. on 29"
September, 2015. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 23™ September, 2016, may cast their vote electronically. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

i} Open your web browser during the voting period and log on to the e-voting website
www.evotingindia.com i) Now click on “Shareholders” to cast your votes

iii) For Members holding shares in Demat Form:-
UserD Ly For cDSL— 16 digits beneficiary ID

b) For NSDL:- 8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits Client ID For Members holding
shares in Physical Form:-
c) Folio Number registered with the Company

iv) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

v) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evatingindia.com and
voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
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vi) If you are a first time user follow the staps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
{(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

+ Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are raquested o use the first two letters of their name and the 8
digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.

+ In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable numbern
of 0’before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL
letters. Eg. f your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then
enter RA00Q00001 in the PAN field.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company
records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

vilDividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the
Bank company records for the said demat account or folic.

Detalls + Ploase enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Detalls in order to login. If the detalls

are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the folic
number or client id in the Dividend Bank details fiekdi as mentioned in
instruction {iv).

viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on SUBMIT” tab

ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation’ menu wherain they are required to mandatorily anter their login password in the
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be alsc used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are gligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep vour password
confidential.

xX) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

xi} Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

xii} On the voling page, vou will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same
the option “YES/NQ” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT”. A confirmation
hox will be displaysd. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK", alse to change your
vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote oh the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your

te.
@) VO
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xvi} You ¢an also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.

xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system,

xviii) Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians

+ Non-ndividual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporates.

+ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk. avoting@edslindia.com.

+ After regeiving the login details a compliance user should be created usinghe admin
login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for
which they wish to vote on.

+ The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vots.

+ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA} which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if an y should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manuel available at www.evotingindia.com,
under help section or write an emall to helpdesk.evoting@ cdslindla.com.

In case of members receiving the physical copy

1. Please follow all steps from Sl no (i) to S| ne (XV) above to cast vote,

By order of the Board of Directors
Place : Hyderabad Sd/-
Date : 07.08.2015 G Anupama
Company Secretary
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E-Voting Page
Resolution Partlculars No. of Assent | Dissent
No. as per Shares
Notice Held
Adoption of statement of Profit & Loss, Balance

1 Sheet, report of Director’s and Auditor's for the
financial year 31" March, 2015

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr N Satish Kumar
who retires by rotation and being eligible offer
himself for re-appointment.

3 To appeint a Director in place of Mr K Radha
Krishna who retires by rotation and being sligible
offer himself for re-appointment.

4 Re-appointment of M/s.P Murali & Co.,, Charterad
Accountants as Statutory Auditors & fixing their
remuneration

5 Appointment of Mr G Viswanath as Nominee
Director of the Company

6 Re-appointment of M. BHR Balaji as Executive
Director for a period of three years

7 Re-appointment of Mr K Radha Krishna as
Whole Time Director & CFOfor a period of three years

8 Re-appointment of Mr B Sreedhara Reddy as
Director — Administration for a period of three years

9 Appointment of M/s.Lavanya & Associates,

Cost Auditors for the year 2015-16

10 To alter Articles of Association of the Company in

conformity with the Companies Act, 2013







If yndelivered please return to
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